
 

1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2023 
 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 
 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – LARGE CONF. RM, CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 
         

1. ROLL CALL   
 

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA   
 

3. OLD BUSINESS 
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
a. FY21-22 Audit Update (FORVIS) 
b. Regional Master Plan (AIA) and Governance (MRF), Water Reclamation and Facility Expansion 

(CDM Smith; WithersRavenel) 
c. Community Justice/NC Against Gun Violence Briefing on Community Violence Intervention Strategies 
d. Boards and Commissions Vacancies Discussion (City Clerk)  
 

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 
Invocation (Pastor Ben Dowden, Freedom Baptist Church)  
Pledge of Allegiance 
 

III. ROLL CALL   
 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of September 5, 2023 

 

V. PRESENTATIONS  
B. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Lynn Doug Bethea, Jr. as an Employee of 

The City of Goldsboro for More Than 22 Years 
C. Kappa Epsilon Psi Military Sorority, Inc. Presentation and Proclamation (Goldsboro Sigma Chapter)  
 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
D. SU-13-23 Special Event Venue (POE/No ABC)– South of US 70W between Hargrove St. and Claridge 

Nursery Rd. (Planning) – Continued from 8/21/23 
E. SU-14-23 R&R Body Shop, Inc./R&R Auto Sales (Automobile Sales-Used) – W. side of S. George St. 

between Crump St. Carver Blvd. (Planning)  
F. SU-15-23 Red Jupiter, LLC. (Storage of Flammable Liquids and Gases) – East side of N. James St. 

between W. Holly St. and W. Vine St. (Planning) 
 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD  
 

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS  
G. Ordinance Establishing a Utility Capital Reserve Fund for System Development Fees (6111) (Finance)  
H. Operating Budget Amendment FY23-24 – System Development Fees (Finance)  
I. Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 200 N. Carolina Street 

to Norris L. Uzzell (Finance)  
J. Supplemental AIA and MRF Grant Applications (City Manager)  
K. Resolution to Increase Police Department and Fire Department Pay (City Manager) 
L. Departmental Monthly Reports  
 

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION  
M. Adoption of An Ordinance Amending Chapter 53: Water and Sewer Systems of the City of Goldsboro’s 

Code of Ordinances (Assistant City Manager) 
 

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS  
N. Hispanic Heritage Month Proclamation  
O. Constitution Week Proclamation  

 

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS  
 

XIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIV. ADJOURN 



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Board Presentation- 
Preliminary Audit Results

City of Goldsboro / September 18, 2023

FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Audit Matters

2

 We are in the process of completing the audit of the financial statements of the City of 
Goldsboro as of June 30, 2022.

 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and perform an audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance the financials are free from material misstatement.

 We expect the audit procedures to be complete and the report to be ready in time to present to 
the City Council at the October 2nd meeting.

 Services Performed:
- Audit of the 2022 basic financial statements
- Compliance audit in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit 

Implementation Act



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

General Fund – Fund Balance Summary 

3

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 (Prelim)
Total fund balance - General Fund 12,274,765$      10,787,621$      9,084,558$        10,611,159$      21,328,589$      

Less:
Nonspendable fund balance (606,124)            (187,925)            (257,212)            (255,407)            (425,801)            
Restricted fund balance (4,998,215)         (6,313,654)         (5,357,362)         (5,610,552)         (7,952,604)         

Fund balance available for appropriation 6,670,426$        4,286,042$        3,469,984$        4,745,200$        12,950,184$      

Total expenditures and routine transfers 40,745,539$      42,168,335$      41,642,852$      37,757,916$      35,077,248$      

Available fund balance as a percentage of
 expenditures and transfers to other funds 16.4% 10.2% 8.3% 12.6% 36.9%



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

General Fund – Fund Balance Summary 

4

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $45,000,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 (Prelim)

GENERAL FUND

Fund balance available for appropriation Total expenditures and routine transfers



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Utility Fund

5

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 (Prelim)
Revenues (budgetary basis) 17,021,651$      17,081,402$      19,372,715$      19,829,707$      19,736,202$         

Expenditures (budgetary basis) 19,852,179$      19,380,053$      18,747,440$      15,589,547$      14,569,058$         

Working capital* 7,836,983$        2,637,200$        4,183,341$        7,294,726$        12,895,238$         

* - Working capital consists of current assets (excluding restricted cash) minus current liabilities



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Utility Fund

6

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 (Prelim)

UTILITY FUND

Revenues (budgetary basis) Expenditures (budgetary basis) Working capital*



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Compliance 
Reporting

7

 Report on Compliance for each Major State Program and on 
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform 
Guidance.

 Major Federal Programs
 21.027 – Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds

 Major State Programs
 DOT-4 – State Street-Aid to Municipalities (“Powell 

Bill”)

No compliance findings, or findings related to internal 
controls over compliance have been noted during our 
testing of any of the above major programs.



FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

Assurance  /  Tax  /  Advisory

forvis.com

Questions?



Board and Commission Vacancies as of August 31, 2023

Commission on Community Relations and Development  
0 Vacancies Recommendation 

*Board recommends for appointment: * 4 applications received

Historic District Commission 
1 Vacancy (ALT position) Recommendation 

*Board recommends for appointment: * 0 applications received

Recreation Advisory Commission 
2 Vacancies Recommendation 

Glenda Creech Resigned 
Danielle Baptiste Resigned 

*Board recommends for appointment: * 1 application received

Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
2 Vacancies   Recommendation 
 
Tyrone Starkie Resigned 
Antwan Williams Request Council Removal due to non-attendance 

*Board recommends for appointment: * 1 application received

Goldsboro Planning Commission 
0 Vacancies  Recommendation 

*Board recommends for appointment: * 3 applications received

Goldsboro Tourism Council 
0 Vacancies Recommendation 

*Board recommends for appointment: * 0 applications received



Applicants for Boards and Commissions 

Commission on Community 
Relations 

and Development 

(City resident or ETJ) 

Goldsboro Historic 
District 

(City resident 
or ETJ) 

Recreation Advisory 
Commission 

(City resident) 

Mayor’s Committee for Persons 
with Disabilities 

(Recommended by local gov., 
private/ community 

organizations, by other 
Committee members, or by 

personal request.) 

(No residency requirement) 

Planning Commission 

(5 city residents 
appointed by City 

Council and 2 members 
appointed by the county 

within the ETJ) 

Goldsboro Tourism Council 

(Three hoteliers and three 
individuals that demonstrate 

interest in tourism) 

(No residency requirement) 

Edna Matthews 
(1st Choice)  
(District 4)  

Barbara Baker 
(2nd Choice) 
(District 4) 

Edna Matthews 
(3rd Choice)  
(District 4) 

Barbara Baker 
(3rd Choice) 
(District 4) 

Barbara Baker 
(1st Choice) 
(District 4) 

Duke Cox 
(1st Choice) 
(District 2) 

Duke Cox 
(2nd Choice) 
(District 2) 

Kyle Cramer 
(1st Choice) 
(District 6) 

Kyle Cramer 
(2nd Choice) 
(District 6) 

Applicant’s board preference is notated by choice (only choice, 1st, 2nd, or 3rd choice). 
Applicants are listed in order as their applications arrive in the office.  Updated June 20, 2023 



1 of 14 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council Chambers, City 
Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on September 5, 2023.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Greg Batts 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk 

Adoption of the Agenda.   Councilwoman Jones requested that Item D, Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize 
Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 200 N. Carolina Street to Housing Authority of the City of Goldsboro, be moved to 
Items Requiring Individual Action. Upon motion of Councilwoman Jones, seconded by Councilman Broadaway, and 
unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda as amended.  

Old Business. 
HOME-ARP Update The item was presented by Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director. 

The City has been allocated $907,913 of HOME-ARP funds by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) to assist individuals or households who are homeless, at risk of homelessness, and other vulnerable 
populations.  

Community Relations & Development staff is providing Council with an update on HOME-ARP funding processes, 
initiatives, and next steps. 

There is no action needed of City Council. 

HOME-ARP
Update
Sept. 5, 2023

Community Relations & Development

Timeline of Events
• Oct. 17, 2022: Invited non-profits made presentations to Council

on how their respective agencies could best utilize HOME-ARP
funding.

• Dec. 19, 2022 : CR&D updated Council and informed that the
initial focus for HOME-ARP dollars should be centered on which
eligible activities the City wishes to fund. Council moved to use
funding for Non-congregate Shelter (NCS) & Supportive Services.

• Jan. 10, 2023: CCRD agreed to recommend to Council that the
HOME-ARP allocation be split at 60% for NCS and 40% for
Supportive Services.

• Jan. 23, 2023: CR&D and CCRD presented to Council. CCRD
Chair made the recommendation of the 60/40 allocation split.
Council moved to distribute remaining funds (minus 15% Admin.
dollars) at the 60/40 split as recommended.

HOME-ARP Update September 5, 2023 2

Allocation Breakdown

HOME-ARP Update

Total Allocation $907,913

Administration (15%) $136,186.95

Remaining Allocation $771,726.05

Non-Congregate Shelter
(60%)

$463,035.63

Supportive Services
(40%)

$308, 690.42

September 5, 2023 3

To Date:

HOME-ARP Update September 5, 2023 4

√
CR&D Staff combing through the federal regulations on:
Administration/Non-Congregate Shelter/Supportive
Services

√ Reviewed City-owned properties as possible NCS options

√ Researched locally owned properties as possible NCS
options

√ Scheduled consultations with HUD

√
Developing the required NCS Program Guidelines,
Supportive Services Program Guidelines, HOME-ARP
Underwriting and Subsidy Layering Guidelines, NCS Unit
Project Pre-Application, & NCS Unit Project RFP

Item A



2 of 14 
 

  
 
 Mayor Ham asked that the Council be kept appraised of where they were on the line items.  
 

 
Tim Salmon, City Manager, provided an introduction to the Police and Fire pay options being presented for Council 

consideration. Staff will bring a resolution for Council approval to the September 18th meeting, if so decided.   
 
Goldsboro Police Department Pay Update. Mike West, Police Chief, presented the following: 

 

  

  

  

  

Next Steps…

HOME-ARP Update September 5, 2023 5

Enter Enter into written agreements between January –
February 2024

Identify Identify Owner/Developer/Agency to operate NCS
& provide Supportive Services by Dec. 31st

Post Post RFP’s and Pre-application before Thanksgiving
Holiday

Return Return to Council for approval of Program
Guidelines, no later than Oct. 16th Council meeting

Thank you
Community Relations & Development

HOME-ARP Update September 5, 2023 6

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT

Michael D. West, Chief of Police

September 5, 2023

8/31/2023 2

VACANCIES

8/31/2023 3

VACANCIES
Type of Separa�on (Sworn) 2020 2021 2022 Total (last 3 years)

Re�rement 4 1 3 8

Terminated 2 0 1 3

Other LE Agency 5 8 7 20

Other Career/Educa�on 0 5 1 6

Other/Undisclosed 6 4 2 12

Total 17 18 14 49

2020 2021 2022 Total (last 3 years)
# Hired 7 7 11 25

8/31/2023 4

CRIME DATA
PART I CRIMES 2022 2023 Trend

Month (July) 168 213 +27%

YTD (July) 1122 1273 +13%

CLEARANCE RATES 2022 2023 Trend

Month (July) 10% 8% -2%

YTD (July) 10% 13% +3%

SHOTSPOTTER 2022 2023 Trend

Month (July) 37 112 +202%

YTD (July) 302 476 +57%

8/31/2023 5

SALARY COMPARISONS
ENTRY BASE Goldsboro WCSO Wilson Princeton Kinston Garner Clayton Smithfield Raleigh

Chapel
Hill

2022 $38,505 $41,000 $41,064 $45,379 $40,278 $47,060 $45,404 $42,416 $42,300 $50,000

2023 $41,239 $50,000 $49,859 $45,379 $40,278 $54,708 $61,522 $48,789 $50,301 $50,000

Other Agency Incen�ves:
• Wilson offers higherincen�ves for proba�on, progression,

sworn service, military service, educa�on
• Princeton offershigher incen�ve for proba�on
• Kinston offers higher incen�ve for progression
• Raleigh offershigher incen�ves for experience and

educa�on
• Chapel Hill offershigher incen�ves for language, educa�on,

POPAT, Advanced LE cer�ficate

Current GPD Incen�ves:
• CJ Standards Proba�on = 5%
• Sworn service/ military service = 1%/year
• Career Progression I, II, Senior = 5% (each level)
• Educa�on = 2.5% to 5%
• Language = 5%
• FTO = 5%
• K9 Officer = 5%
• Traffic Officer = 5%

8/31/2023 6

PROPOSAL A

Posi�on Current Pay Grade/Salary Proposed Pay Grade

61/41 Police Officer 73 $41,239.41 - $65,158.27 77 $50,126.76 - $79,200.28

23 Corporal 76 $47,739.77 - $75,428.84 79 $55,264.75 - $87,318.31

11 Sergeant 77 $50,126.76 - $79,200.28 81 $60,929.39 - $96,268.44

8 Captain 80 $58,027.99 - $91,684.23 83 $67,174.65 - $106,135.96

3 Major 85 $74,060.06 - $117,014.89 86 $77,763.06 - $122,865.64

1 Chief 89 $90,020.46 - $142,232.33 89 $90,020.46 - $142,232.33

107 Total $5,613,904.31
Budget Adopted
$5,787,592.80

$6,619,274.02

(-831,681.22)

8/31/2023 7

PROPOSAL B
Posi�on Current Pay Grade/Salary Proposed Pay Grade

61/41 Police Officer 73 $41,239.41 - $65,158.27 76,77,78,79 $47,739.78 - $75,428.85

23 Corporal 76 $47,739.77 - $75,428.84 79 $55,264.75 - $87,318.30

11 Sergeant 77 $50,126.76 - $79,200.28 81 $60,929.39 - $96,268.45

8 Captain 80 $58,027.99 - $91,684.23 83 $67,174.65 - $106,135.97

3 Major 85 $74,060.06 - $117,014.89 86 $77,763.06 - $122,865.64

1 Chief 89 $90,020.46 - $142,232.33 89 $90,020.46 - $142,232.33

107 Total $5,613,904.31
Budget Adopted
$5,787,592.80

* no merit $6,104,577.80*
$6,127,528.51

(-$490,673.49) *Projected
(-$339,935.71) Adopted

8/31/2023 8

FUNDING
Lapse Salaries/Unused Funding

Delayed promo�on (FY 25) of Major vacancy $83,448.75

12 funded Officer and 1 Corporal vacancy for 6 months
(Jan 1, 2024)

$242,251.77

6 funded Officer and 1 Corporal vacancy for 6 months
(July 1, 2024)

$132,849.06

Total Lapse Salaries for 12 months (July 1, 2024) $458,549.58

Promo�onal Assessment for Major $25,000.00

Total Funding $483,549.58



3 of 14 
 

  

 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews asked if a new officer coming in would make more than a Major. Chief West stated that 

both options address compression, though option A may address it better.  
 
Mayr Ham asked if this increase is on top of what was approved in this year’s budget. Chief West confirmed it is.  
 
Councilwoman Jones stated that Congressman Wiley Nickel would be willing to sit down with Chief West, the 

Mayor, and the City Manager to discuss grants that may be available. Chief West stated that he would be willing to meet.  
 
Goldsboro Fire Department Pay Update. Chief Ron Stempien presented the following:  

 

  

  

  

8/31/2023 9

COST PROPOSAL A
FY 24

ADOPTED
All posi�ons funded

except (20) frozen
PROJECTED DIFFERENCE

Approx. Salaries July 1- September 30, 2023 $1,446,898.20 $1,264,585.35 +$182,312.85

Approx. Salaries October 1- December 30, 2023
(Includes 21.55% increase effec�ve October 1 for all  sworn
officers, excluding Chief of Police)*

$1,446,898.20 $1,462,460.13
Vacant: Major, Corporal, (12) Officers

-$15,561.93

Approx. Salaries January 1-June 30, 2024
(Includes 21.55% increase and hiring 6 officers January 1) $2,893,796.40 $3,075,099.26

Vacant: Major, Corporal, (6) Officers
-$181,302.86

Total Approx. Salaries through FY 2024* $5,787,592.80 $5,802,144.74 -$14,551.94

Approx. Benefits July 1 - September 30, 2023 $416,142.79 $341,438.04 +$74,704.74

Approx. Benefits October 1 - December 30, 2023 $416,142.79 $394,864.23
Vacant: Major, Corporal, (12) Officers

+$21,278.55

Approx. Benefits January 1-June 30, 2024 $832,285.58 $830,276.80
Vacant: Major, Corporal, (6) Officers

+$2,008.78

Total Approx. Benefits through FY 2024
(+27%; Line Items 1810, 1820, 1821, 1822) $1,664,571.16 $1,566,579.07 +$97,992.07

Total Salaries and Benefits $7,452,163.96 $7,368,723.81 +83,440.13

8/31/2023 10

COST PROPOSAL B
FY 24

ADOPTED
All posi�ons funded

except (20) frozen
PROJECTED DIFFERENCE

Approx. Salaries July 1- September 30, 2023 $1,446,898.20 $1,264,585.35 +$182,312.85

Approx. Salaries October 1- December 30, 2023
(Includes 10% increase or minimum of new pay grade effec�ve
October 1 for all  sworn officers, excluding Chief)*

$1,446,898.20 $1,350,156.87
Vacant: Major, Corporal, (12) Officers

+96,741.33

Approx. Salaries January 1-June 30, 2024
(Includes 10% increase or minimum of new pay grade and hiring
6 officers January 1)

$2,893,796.40 $2,843,342.12
Vacant: Major, Corporal, (6) Officers

+$50,454.28

Total Approx. Salaries through FY 2024* $5,787,592.80 $5,458,084.34 +329,508.46

Approx. Benefits July 1 - September 30, 2023 $416,142.79 $341,438.04 +$74,704.74

Approx. Benefits October 1 - December 30, 2023 $416,142.79 $364,542.35
Vacant: Major, Corporal, (12) Officers

+$51,600.43

Approx. Benefits January 1-June 30, 2024 $832,285.58 $767,702.37
Vacant: Major, Corporal, (6) Officers

+$64,583.21

Total Approx. Benefits through FY 2024
(+27%; Line Items 1810, 1820, 1821, 1822) $1,664,571.16 $1,473,682.76 +190,888.38

Total Salaries and Benefits $7,452,163.96 $6,931.767.10 +$520,396.84

8/31/2023 11

COST

FY 25 PROPOSAL B ALL FUNDED (except 20 frozen) ADOPTED PROJECTED DIFFERENCE

Total Approx. Salaries through FY 2024 $5,787,592.80 $6,127,528.54 -$339,935.74

Total Approx. Benefits through FY 2024
(+27%; Line Items 1810, 1820, 1821, 1822) $1,664,571.16 $1,654,432.71 +$10,138.45

Total Salaries and Benefits $7,452,163.96 $7,781,961.25 -$329,797.29

FY 25 PROPOSAL A ALL FUNDED (except 20 frozen) ADOPTED PROJECTED DIFFERENCE

Total Approx. Salaries through FY 2024 $5,787,592.80 $6,626,434.82 -$838,842.02

Total Approx. Benefits through FY 2024
(+27%; Line Items 1810, 1820, 1821, 1822) $1,664,571.16 $1,789,137.40 -$124,566.24

Total Salaries and Benefits $7,452,163.96 $8,415,572.22 -$963,408.26

8/31/2023 12

QUESTIONS

Thank you for your �me.

Chief Michael D. West
mwest@goldsboronc.gov

Office: 919-580-4231

FIRE DEPARTMENT SALARY PROPOSAL

Ron Stempien, Fire Chief

8/31/2023 1 8/31/2023 2

Personnel

 35 personnel have been
hired since 2019.

 45 personnel have
resigned/re�red since
2019.

 18 of the 35 personnel
hired since 2019 have
resigned.

7

8

6

14

0

11

6

11 11

6

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Hired Resigned

8/31/2023 3

Current Staffing

GFD has 75 Line Personnel Posi�ons

8 – Vacant Firefighter Posi�ons

3 – Frozen Firefighter Posi�ons

64

3

8

Filled Frozen Firefighter Vacant Firefighter

8/31/2023 4

NFPA 1710 Requires a response of 17 personnel for structure fires in single family homes.

Remaining GFD personnel to cover the rest of the city during fire.

Current Response Situa�on

8/31/2023 5

NFPA 1710 Requires a response of 17 personnel for structure fires in single family homes.

Remaining GFD personnel to cover the rest of the city during fire.

Ideal Response Situa�on

8/31/2023 6

Call Volume

Call volume in July has increased by 53%

January February March April May June July
Total Calls 277 222 229 262 263 277 389
Mul�-truck Fire Calls 81 62 75 89 86 98 101

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450



4 of 14 
 

  

  

 

 

 

 

Importance
of Quick
Response
Times

8/31/2023 7

Effects of Personnel Shortage

8/31/2023 8

• Decrease safety of responders and ci�zens
• Special teams hindered
• Pa�ent care diminished
• Makes obtaining training requirements more difficult
• Low morale

Hiring Stats for Current Process

8/31/2023 9

9 2

73

Total Applicants: 84

Passed CPAT Passed CPAT (with cert) Dropped Process

Current Pay Scale in Eastern NC

8/31/2023 10

$38,153.00
$40,000.00

$41,910.00 $42,000.00 $42,380.00 $42,774.00 $43,500.00 $45,000.00

$49,289.00 $49,602.00 $50,814.40
$52,457.00

$55,000.00

$0.00

$10,000.00

$20,000.00

$30,000.00

$40,000.00

$50,000.00

$60,000.00

Proposed Pay Scale Op�on A
(Cer�fied Firefighters)

8/31/2023 11

$40,000.00
$41,910.00 $42,000.00 $42,380.00 $42,774.00 $43,301.00 $43,500.00 $45,000.00

$49,289.00 $49,602.00 $50,814.40
$52,457.00

$55,000.00

$0.00

$10,000.00

$20,000.00

$30,000.00

$40,000.00

$50,000.00

$60,000.00

Proposed Pay Grade Op�on A

8/31/2023 12

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

Firefighter
Trainee

Firefighter Senior
Firefighter

Fire Engineer Fire Engineer II Fire Captain Fire Captain II Ba�alion Chief Assistant Chief Deputy Chief Chief

70
71 71

74 74

78 78

81

85

88
89

73
74

75

77
78

79
80

82

85

88
89

Current Pay Grade Proposed Pay Grade

Pay Increases Op�on A

9/1/2023 13

10% Raise

0% Raise

5% Raise

11+% Raise

• 54 Personnel will  receive a10% Raise
• This includes Firefighters, Engineers, and Captains.

• 7 Personnel will  receive a5% Raise
• This includes the 3 Ba�alion Chiefs, 3 Assistant Chiefs,

and Deputy Chief.

• 5 Personnel will  receiveno raise
• This includes the Fire Chief, Execu�ve Assistant,

Administra�ve Assistant, and part-�me personnel .

• 17 Personnel will  receiveover 10% to bring them up to the
bo�om of their new pay scale.

• This includes 15 firefighter posi�ons and 2 Engineer
posi�ons.

• This brings the firefighter star�ng pay to a compe��ve
level with surrounding departments.

Cost and Funding Op�on A

9/1/2023 14

Effec�ve Date Salary
Increase

Salary
Increase

With Benefits

Lapsed Salaries
(Includes delayed hiring
of 6 un�l Dec 27, 2023)

Inspec�on/Fire
Alarm Fees

(Full Year Es�mate)

October 4, 2023
(Op�on A – 1) $290k $369k $131k $57k

December 27,
2023

(Op�on A – 2)
$199k $252k $125k $57k

*Full year cost: $397k (without benefits), $504k(with benefits)
*Projected annual Inspec�on/Fire Alarm revenues: $76k

Proposed Pay Scale Op�on B
(Cer�fied Firefighters)

9/1/2023 15

$40,000.00 $41,239.42 $41,910.00 $42,000.00 $42,380.00 $42,774.00 $43,500.00
$45,000.00

$49,289.00 $49,602.00 $50,814.40
$52,457.00

$55,000.00

$0.00

$10,000.00

$20,000.00

$30,000.00

$40,000.00

$50,000.00

$60,000.00

Kinston Goldsboro Smithfield Faye�eville Cleveland Tarboro Wilson Mills Wilson Clayton Garner Cary Apex Rocky Mount

Proposed Pay Grade Op�on B

9/1/2023 16

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

Firefighter
Trainee

Firefighter Senior
Firefighter

Fire Engineer Fire Engineer II Fire Captain Fire Captain II Ba�alion Chief Assistant Chief Deputy Chief Chief

70
71 71

74 74

78 78

81

85

88
89

72
73

74

76
77

79
80

82

85

88
89

Current Pay Grade Proposed Pay Grade

Pay Increases Op�on B

9/1/2023 17

• 61 Personnel will  receive a5% Raise
• This includes Firefighters, Engineers, and Captains,

3 Ba�alion Chiefs, 3 Assistant Chiefs, and Deputy Chief.

• 5 Personnel will  receiveno raise
• This includes the Fire Chief, Execu�ve Assistant,

Administra�ve Assistant, and part-�me personnel .

• 17 Personnel will  receiveover 5% to bring them up to the
bo�om of their new pay scale.

• This includes 15 firefighter posi�ons and 2 Engineer
posi�ons.

• This brings the firefighter star�ng pay to a compe��ve
level with surrounding departments.

5%

6+%

0%

Cost and Funding Op�on B

9/1/2023 18

Effec�ve Date Salary
Increase

Salary
Increase

With Benefits

Lapsed Salaries
(Includes delayed hiring
of 6 un�l Dec 27, 2023)

Inspec�on/Fire
Alarm Fees

(Full Year Es�mate)

October 4, 2023
(Op�on B – 1) $161k $204k $129k $57k

December 27, 2023
(Op�on B – 2) $110k $140k $126k $57k

*Full year cost: $220k (without benefits), $279k (with benefits)
*Projected annual Inspec�on/Fire Alarm revenues: $76k



5 of 14 
 

 
 

Mayor Ham asked if this increase is on top of what was approved in this year’s budget. Chief Stempien confirmed it 
is.  

 
Councilwoman Jones asked for clarification on which group would not get a raise. Chief Stempien stated that it 

would be himself, his executive assistant, his administrative assistant, and their part-time positions.  
 
Tim Salmon, City Manager, reminded Council of the impact on this year’s budget, as well as next year’s budget. 
 
Mayor Ham stated that if Council could come to a consensus, a resolution could be brought to the next Council 

meeting, and the pay raises could be effective in October.  
 
Councilman Gaylor stated that his fear with adopting the high options for both departments is that it is a monumental 

shift to the approved budget, and it would tie the hands of the incoming Council. He also stated that action should be taken 
with something that fits within the approved budget, but sends a message that we are going to do something further.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews asked if there is a middle option, to safely get close to what the Chiefs are asking far, and 

asked the City Manager what his recommendation was. Tim Salmon, City Manager, recommended that Option B be 
approved for both departments now, so that pay increases could begin in October, and consider other options later. 

 
Mayor Ham asked if there was a consensus to bring a resolution to the next Council meeting approving option A or 

B. Council discussed the option further. Council consented to have a resolution brought back to the next meeting to approve 
option B for both the Police and Fire Departments, beginning in October.  
 

New Business.  
 Downtown Master Plan History & Update. The item was presented by Erin Fonseca, Downtown Development 
Director.   
  
 Goldsboro’s Historic District was created in 1984 as a means to protect the historic structures that are deemed 
significant due to their architectural style, age and use. The District is a collection of over two dozen distinct styles of homes 
and commercial buildings dating from the mid-1880’s to 1939. The creation of the District was intended to provide 
measures of security in private investment, protect our historic structures and create/maintain a sense of place. Individually, 
the properties are unique, and collectively, they help assure Goldsboro is a distinctive place.   
  
 In February 2006, Council adopted a Downtown Neighborhood Revitalization Plan in an effort to take a proactive 
step in the development of viable neighborhoods surrounding the commercial downtown core; preparing for future 
investment in areas facing blight and disinvestment.  This Plan involved City departments, including Planning, Inspections, 
Downtown Development, Finance, PD, the City Attorney and the Manager’s Office, along with partners, Preservation NC 
and Self-Help. 
 
 In April of 2006, Council approved funding for the creation of a Master Plan of the Greater Downtown Goldsboro 
area, with the intent of developing a plan and vision for both the commercial core and its surrounding historic residential 
neighborhoods. The City hired Allison Platt & Associates to prepare the Master Plan and worked together to complete the 
project and to guide its development with the assistance of public input from four public forums and numerous personal 
stakeholder interviews.  The process took fourteen months to complete, simultaneously studying the historic neighborhoods 
and referencing needs and priorities previously identified in the Neighborhood Plan.  
 
 The Master Plan was adopted by Council in August of 2007. Highlights of the Master Plan included a need to 
address:  1) appearance of the approaches into downtown and the lack of adequate wayfinding signs, 2) erosion of 
downtown edges into the historic residential neighborhoods, 3) more residential and mixed uses in the downtown core, 4) 
the continued consideration of potential sites of catalyst uses and their potential major impacts to downtown and the city at-
large, 5) attention to open space hierarchy and streetscapes, 6) concentrate on character and image.   
 
 Since 2007, both plans have guided public and private investment downtown, including the first phase of Center 
Street Streetscape on North Center Street, funded by the City as a commitment to infrastructure improvements, followed by 
the most-notable TIGER (Transportation Infrastructure Generating Economic Recovery) grant funded projects. A $10M 
TIGER grant was awarded from the USDOT in 2013, supporting the construction of the GWTA Transit Center, three more 

Thank you

9/1/2023 19



6 of 14 
 

blocks of Center Street Streetscape Project, Streetscape work to connect downtown/Center Street to Union Station/GWTA, 
and site work at the Union Station/GWTA property. Later, a second $5M TIGER grant was awarded in 2016 to further the 
efforts of the previous grant. Completed in 2020, projects included the final two blocks of Center Street Streetscape from 
Spruce to Elm, construction of The HUB - a downtown park-like amenity, and the addition of 90+ wayfinding signs located 
throughout the Greater Goldsboro area.  
 
 Economic impact has been tracked since 2013 to determine the positive affect of investment. In the last decade, 
downtown has realized 193 building renovations, 491 net jobs gained, 77 net new businesses, $44M in private investment 
and $35M in public investment. $12.5M from the City with the remaining from Federal, State and County and a 5:1 return 
on the City’s investment.    
 

Changes in leadership and financial capacity may temporarily affect investment in any area, however consistency of 
plan and purpose are necessary to guide successful strategic development. While both plans require updates to continue 
planning for future growth and investment, the priorities remain applicable.   
 
 No recommendation at this time. Sharing for informational purposes and consideration in future property 
discussions. 
 

 

 

 

 

Downtown Goldsboro Master
Plan & Neighborhood Plan Update

www.goldsboronc.go

• IDENTIFY MAJOR NEEDS

• PRIORITIZE FUNDING + INVESTMENT

• PRIORITIZE PROJECTS

• ALIGN EFFORTS + ENCOURAGE COHESION

• CREATE A ROADMAP FOR GROWTH

Why Is
Planning
Necessary?
Downtowns require focused resources and strategic
planning to encourage growth and investment.
Economic growth benefits the greater community.

Timeline
2006 2007 2013

Downtown Goldsboro
Neighborhood
Revitalization Plan
Completed and
Adopted

Downtown Goldsboro
Master Plan Created
& Adopted

First TIGER Grant
Awarded = $10M for
Major Streetscape
Improvements from
Master Plan -
Completed in 2015

2016

Second TIGER Grant
Awarded = $5M for
Additional
Improvements from
Master Plan -
Completed in 2020

2012

First phase of Center
Street Streetscape
completed by City for
$2.3M, guided by
Master Plan

Neighborhood
Plan : Key
Priorities

TEAM MEMBERS (AS DIRECTED BY COUNCIL)

HOW?
• Acquire properties as needed.
• Stabilize, Market & Sell homes

with covenants
• Create a Revolving/Stabilization

Fund
• Prepare for Infill Development

City Manager
Assistant City Manager
Police Chief
City Attorney
Finance Director

Chief Inspector
Planning Director
Downtown Development Director

• Restore Historic Neighborhoods
• Restore Historic Homes for Single-Family,

Owner-Occupied Use
• Create Infill Development for Affordable

Housing that Compliments Historic Nature of
Neighborhoods

• Generate Private Investment
• Prepare for Growth from Raleigh & Union

Station Development

• Create a Substantial and Sustaining Future
for Commercial Growth

• Strengthen the Tax Base
• Reduce Crime
• Preserve Historic Properties and Utilize

Uniqueness to Provide a Diverse
Neighborhood

• Meet future housing needs of SJAFB

Depot District
Neighborhood

Borders:
Carolina Street to
George Street;
Ash Street to
Chestnut Street

North George &
James Street
Neighborhood

Borders:
George Street to
James Street;
Vine Street to Ash
Street (North of Ash)

South John &
William Street
Neighborhood

Borders:
John Street to
William Street;
Spruce Street to
Elm Street



7 of 14 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 Mayor Ham expressed his hope that one day the railroad would come back through Goldsboro from Wilmington to 
Raleigh, and that the focus on that goal would not fade.  He asked what the next course of action is.  
 

Erin Fonseca, Downtown Director, stated that they are looking at Public Funding to stabilize Union Station, in order 
to attract a developer and put it back into use. She also stated that it may be helpful to outline a process to guide the decision 
making when it comes to turning over property.  

 
Matt Livingston, Assistant City Manager, stated that we need a more thorough approach to neighborhood 

revitalization; we need to use the tools in the HUD toolbox to make revitalizations happen.  
  

Consent Agenda Review. Items E-I on the consent agenda were reviewed. Further discussion included the following: 
 
Item E – South Center Street Residential Infill RFQ. Mayor Ham stated that the RFQ was well prepared, and 

asked if the purchasing director was involved. Erin Fonseca, Downtown Director, confirmed they were involved to confirm 
a RFQ was the proper process, and adapting the application to the City’s platform. 

 
Item G – Small Batch Craft Event – Temporary Street Closure. Mayor Ham asked if this would be a monthly 

event. Police Chief West stated he would have to check. Tim Salmon, City Manager, stated that he believes this event only 
happens around the holidays.  

 
 
 

Center Street Streetscape - Phase 1
100% City Funded

Completed Projects

Center Street Streetscape - Phase 2
TIGER Award- 75% Federal, 25% City

Completed Projects

GWTA New Facility Construction
Funded by 2013 TIGER Grant- 75%
Federal funded

Goldsboro Union Station Site Work
Funded by 2013 TIGER Grant- 75%
Federal funded

Completed Projects

Center Street Streetscape Phase 3
Funded by 2016 TIGER Grant- 75%
Federal funded

HUB Project
Funded by 2016 TIGER Grant- 75%
Federal funded

Completed Projects

Wayfinding Signage
Funded by 2016 TIGER Grant- 75%
Federal funded

• Great American Main
Street Award

• Goldsboro Union
Station Reuse Study
(2020)

• Arts District Feasibility
Study (2022 )

Other

Promote mixed -density infill on
the 300 and 400 blocks of South
Center St.

• RESIDENTIAL

What's Next?

• STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT

Create connectivity with key
historical asset & anchor -
Goldsboro Union Station. Stabilize
and spur further investment.

Strategic
Residential
Development

• Revitalization of the surrounding residential
neighborhoods.

• Promote mixed -income and scaled development.
• Encourage historic preservation as an economic

development tool.



8 of 14 
 

Closed Session.  
Upon motion of Councilman Gaylor seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried, Council went 

into Closed Session to discuss Litigation. 
 

After the Closed Session was held, Council came out of Closed Session and back into Open Session. 
 
Mayor Ham recessed the meeting until 7:00 p.m. 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 

214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on September 5, 2023. 
 
Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Greg Batts  
 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk 

  
Approval of Minutes.  Councilman Batts made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session and Regular 

Meeting of August 21, 2023. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.   
 
Public Hearings.  
 Z-12-23 Dearing Automotive & Diesel, Inc. (Residential 16 to Highway Business) – West side of US 117 Hwy. 

between Belfast Rd. and Scale Dr. Withdrawn, six-month waiting period and fee for resubmission waived. The item was 
presented by Kenny Talton, Planning Director.   

ADDRESS: TBD 

PARCEL #: 3601-32-1584 

PROPERTY OWNER: Pate Property Management, LLC. 

APPLICANT:  Jayme S. Dearing 

The applicant is requesting a rezoning from the Residential (R-16) Zoning District to the Highway Business (HB) 
Zoning District. The purpose of the Highway Business (HB) Zoning District is to accommodate highway-oriented retail and 
commercial uses which generally serve the entire City and nonresident traffic. The district encourages high-quality design, 
ample parking, controlled traffic movements and suitable landscaping. 

Access: N. US 117 Hwy./Peanut Ct. 

Area: 36 acres (Approximately 2.7 acres, not surveyed) 

North: Residential (R-16) 

South: Residential (R-16), Neighborhood Business (NB)/ Residential-Manufactured Non-Conforming (RM-NC) 

East: Residential (R-16)  

West: Residential (R-16) 

The property is currently vacant. 

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the Mixed Use II land use designation. This designation allows 
for a mixture of uses which may have an impact on or produce some conflict with adjacent lower density districts.   

Corresponding Zoning Districts in the Mixed-Use II designation include Office Residential (O-R), Office and 
Institutional (O&I-1), Office and Institutional (O&I-II), and Shopping Center (SC). The Highway Business (HB) Zoning 
District is not identified as a corresponding district for the Mixed-Use II land use designation.  



9 of 14 
 

This is a rezoning proposal for one parcel approximately 2.7 acres to be rezoned from the Residential (R-16) Zoning 
District to the Highway Business (HB) Zoning District. The subject property is currently vacant. The adjacent uses are 
predominantly residential in nature.  This parcel has partial access from Peanut Ct. and is adjacent to N. US Hwy. 117.  

Staff has distributed this proposed rezoning to SJAFB and NCDOT. There are no comments at this time.  If the 
rezoning is approved, formal comments will be generated once a site-specific plan is submitted for development. 

Staff is recommending denial of the rezoning request based on the fact that the proposed Highway Business Zoning 
District is not compatible with the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan and accompanying Land Use Plan 
Map.  The Highway Business Zoning District is not a corresponding zoning district in the Mixed-Use II land use 
designation.  Furthermore, the proposed rezoning and the range of uses permitted in the requested zoning district are not 
compatible with the surrounding zoning patterns and land uses. 

The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on August 28, 2023, to review and make a recommendation 
regarding the rezoning request. Planning Commission voted 0 in favor 5 against. 

Staff recommended that Council approve the recommendation by the Planning Commission to deny and vote to adopt 
the Ordinance to Deny with the inclusion of a statement that deems this rezoning request to be inconsistent, or Council shall 
approve and vote to adopt the Ordinance to Approve with the inclusion of the consistency statement. Council may also 
continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is needed. 

On September 5, 2023 the applicant submitted a letter to requesting withdrawal of the rezoning request and 
modification of the six-month waiting period.  

Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

A motion was made by Councilman Broadaway to approve the withdrawal request and modification of the six-month 
waiting period. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.  

Ron Lawrence, City Attorney, stated that Council needed to include what the modification is in the motion. Kenny 
Talton, Planning Director, read the letter from the applicant requesting the withdrawal.  

A motion was made by Councilman Broadaway to approve the withdrawal request and waive the six-month waiting 
period and fee for resubmission. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.  

UDO-3-23 City of Goldsboro Code of Ordinances: Chapter 118: Sidewalk Café. Ordinance Adopted. The item 
was presented by Kenny Talton, Planning Director.   

APPLICANT: Kyle Merritt 

The applicant is proposing for a comprehensive text amendment to Chapter 118 of the City Code of Ordinances to 
include language pertaining to Places of Entertainment with ABC Permit. The proposed amendment would include language 
that allows for Places of Entertainment with ABC Permit to provide for enclosed outdoor areas for the consumption of 
alcohol. These areas must be included in the Special Use Permit approval in order for permitted Places of Entertainment 
with ABC Permit to allow for these outdoor areas to operate.   

See below for major components of the proposed text amendment.  

Definitions 

ALCOHOL BEVERAGE CONSUMPTION AREA. The area associated with a Place of Entertainment with ABC 
permit designed for the outdoor consumption of alcohol. An area located on the portion of the sidewalk or pedestrian way 
adjacent to the Place of Entertainment with ABC permit. 

PLACE OF ENTERTAINMENT WITH ABC PERMIT. Establishments to include but not limited to bars, 
nightclubs, pool halls, and microbreweries. An establishment engaged primarily in the act or serving, selling, or allowing for 
the consumption of alcohol. The establishment may provide entertainment in the form of performances, recreation or sport 
but is not limited to these specific forms of entertainment. Places of Entertainment may provide for Alcohol Beverage 
Consumption areas on the sidewalk if permitted by City Council acting as the Board of Adjustment. 

Seating Capacity: Shall not exceed 10% of the maximum building capacity based off NC Building Code occupancy 
requirements. Example 100-person capacity, no more than 10 outdoor seats within Alcohol Beverage Consumption Area.  

Fee: Yearly review and renewal fee to increase from $100 per application to $300. This fee applies to both Sidewalk 
Cafes and Alcohol Beverage Consumption Areas. 

The applicant is requesting this Text Amendment to be utilized by the recently approved Special Use Permit for the 
relocation of “Church Spirits & Cocktails” to 136 N. Center Street. This text amendment, if approved, would require the 
Special Use Approval for “Church Spirits & Cocktails” to go back to City Council for explicit approval for an outdoor 
Alcohol Beverage Consumption Area.  

Land Use Plan Recommendation: The City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Plan classifies the Central Business District 
to be in the Mixed-Use Downtown designation. An identified goal of the comprehensive land use plan is to continue to 
focus on improvement of the downtown Goldsboro area.   

Staff is recommending approval of the proposed text amendment due to the fact it does not significantly differ in 
nature from the Sidewalk Cafes which are already permitted to exist. Furthermore, the fact that Alcohol Beverage 



10 of 14 
 

Consumption Areas are required to be explicitly identified and approved in the Special Use Permit process allows for 
Council to place any conditions on them that would mitigate potential negative impacts to downtown Goldsboro.  

The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on August 28, 2023, to review and make a recommendation 
regarding the proposed text amendment.  The Planning Commission voted 5 in favor and 0 against. 

Staff recommended that Council approve the recommendation from the Planning Commission to approve the 
consistency statement provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the Consistency Statement, 
or Council shall deny the recommendation from the Planning Commission and approve the inconsistency statement that 
deems this text amendment request to be inconsistent. Council may also continue the public hearing to a date certain if they 
determine further discussion is needed. 

Council discussed the amendment, and the restrictions regarding sidewalk cafes and serving alcohol in such areas.  

Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed.  

A motion was made by Councilman Batts to adopt the ordinance to approve. The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Gaylor. Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, Councilman Broadaway, Councilman Gaylor, and 
Councilman Batts voted in favor of the motion. Councilwoman Jones voted against the motion. The motion passed 5:1, and 
Council adopted the following entitled Ordinance. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-51 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 118: SIDEWALK CAFÉS OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO’S CODE OF ORDINANCES” 

Public Comment Period. Mayor Ham opened the public comment period. The following people spoke:  

1. Jack Kannan and Anna Hinson, Arts Council, invited Councilmembers to the Arts Council Grand Opening on 
September 15th from 5-8 PM. They also stated that they appreciate all the support they have been given. Mayor 
Ham stated his appreciation for what Jack Kannan has done for the Arts Council.  

2. Tenisha Saylor, spoke about the effect of homelessness on the community. She stated that homeless families are 
living in hotels, causing tourists to turn away. She asked for better shelters and places for the homeless to go.  

3. David Craig, referenced the 2009 ARCADIS Study, and claimed that the City has raised rates and not used the 
money to improve the wastewater system.  

 
Mayor Ham reminded everyone that this is not the place for a campaign platform, and stated that some of the speaker’s 

comments were incorrect.  
 
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager, provided facts refuting some of the claims made by David Craig 

concerning the outdated ARCADIS Study, and the Mimosa Park Pump Station.  
 
Councilman Gaylor asked for a brief explanation on how the General Fund and the Utility Fund interact. He also 

asked him to explain if Police or Fire salaries could be paid from anything other than the General Fund. 
 
Matthew Livingston, Assistant City Manager, stated that they do not interact, they are two separate funds, they are not 

allowed to be mixed, and they come from different fund sources. He confirmed that the salaries could not be paid from 
anything other than the General Fund.  

 
No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.   
 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. City Manager Tim Salmon presented the Consent Agenda.  All items 

were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a Councilmember 
so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered separately. In that event, 
the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote. Item D, Accept or Reject 
Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 200 N. Carolina Street to Housing Authority of the City of 
Goldsboro, was moved to Items Requiring Individual Action during adoption of the Agenda. Councilman Broadaway moved 
the items on the Consent Agenda, Items E-I be approved.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Batts, and a roll call 
vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion. 

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  

 
South Center Street Residential Infill RFQ. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Erin Fonseca, 

Downtown Development Director.   

 
� תּכֿ לּפּ ךּ ע אל לּאלףּ טּ₪  וֹ   סּאלףּ  � תּקּ ק אל רּףּ לּ תּףּפֿשּ פֿשּ � תּכֿ לּפּ ךּ ע אל לּאלףּ פ ׃ לּ טּףּכֿ לּףּשּׁ קּ 

South Center Residential Infill



11 of 14 
 

As part of the Center Street Streetscape Project, the City completed the final phase of development on the 300 and 
400 blocks of South Center Street, between Spruce and Elm in preparation for strategic residential infill development. 
Completed in 2020, Phase 3 of the Streetscape project included expanded sidewalk width, three additional round-a-bouts, 
including a partial round-a-bout accommodating the Freedom Tree, a pedestrian linear park in the median, crosswalks, a 
bike path, on-street parking, decorative lighting, trees, and buried overhead utility lines.  

 
Streetscape construction also addressed slope issues on these two blocks, aged subsurface infrastructure, and added 

green space and unique median design elements to improve pedestrian circulation, compliment previous phases of Streetscape 
projects, support residential development and connect residents to the commercial core. 

 
Based on Downtown Master Plan recommendations, the City identified the 300 and 400 blocks of South Center Street 

for a private developer to create residential infill. The City owned the majority of the non-built properties in these two 
blocks, and purchased the fifteen remaining properties to complete a 6-acre tract at a cost of $169,139 in 2007 and 2008.  

 
In preparation for the successful identification of a private developer to carryout residential infill, the Downtown 

Development Department contracted economic development consultant, Randall Gross, to conduct developer interviews. The 
interviews found a high level of interest among developers who qualify Goldsboro as part of their market, with reservations 
related to current construction costs and population growth. It was recommended that the City prepare a Request for 
Qualifications to identify a qualified, suitable developer to prepare a project that aligns the City’s development goals with the 
investment model of the developer.  

 
Upon approval of the RFQ and signed resolution, the RFQ will be marketed beginning immediately through the City’s 

bid platform. After the submission deadline, all responses will be reviewed by a panel assigned by city management, 
following outlined criteria. If/when one or more ideal candidate(s) are identified, the panel will present a recommendation to 
Council for approval to enter into a contract for development. Property acquisition terms and potential economic development 
agreements will be negotiated with guidance from Council.   

 
Staff recommended that Council adopt a resolution of intent to develop the 300 and 400 blocks of South Center Street 

for residential infill and advertise a Request for Qualifications for South Center Street Residential Infill Development of the 
city-owned portions of these blocks.  

 
Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes). 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-58 “RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO DEVELOP THE 300 AND 400 BLOCKS OF SOUTH 
CENTER STREET FOR RESIDENTIAL INFILL AND ADVERTISE A REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS FOR 
DEVELOPMENT” 

 
Small Batch Craft Event – Temporary Street Closure. Street Closure Approved. The item was presented by Mike 

West, Police Chief.   
 
The Small Batch Craft Market, LLC is sponsoring a craft fair to be held downtown to support local artists and makers 

of goods.  
 
The events will be hosted from 12:00pm – 4:00pm on the 200 block of South Center Street on November 12, 2023. 

The Small Batch Craft Market, LLC is requesting the closure of the north and south bound lanes of South Center Street 
from Spruce to Chestnut Street from 10:00am – 6:00pm.  

 
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be 

addressed:  
 
1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, changes in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 
 
It was recommended that Council, by motion, grant the requested temporary closing of the northbound lane of South 

Center Street from Spruce to Chestnut Street as stated above.  
 
Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes). 
 
Small Batch Craft Event – Temporary Street Closure. Street Closure Approved. The item was presented by Mike 

West, Police Chief.   
 
The Small Batch Craft Market, LLC is sponsoring a craft fair to be held downtown to support local artists and makers 

of goods.  
 



12 of 14 
 

The events will be hosted from 12:00pm – 4:00pm on the 200 block of South Center Street on December 10, 2023. 
The Small Batch Craft Market, LLC is requesting the closure of the north and south bound lanes of South Center Street 
from Spruce to Chestnut Street from 10:00am – 6:00pm.  

  
As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be 

addressed:  
 
1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  
2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  
3. All activities, changes in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  
4. The Police and Fire Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 
 
It was recommended that Council, by motion, grant the requested temporary closing of the northbound lane of South 

Center Street from Spruce to Chestnut Street as stated above.  
 
Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes). 
 
Sale of City Right-of-Way for NCDOT Project U-4753. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Matthew 

Livingston, Assistant City Manager.   
 
U-4753 is a significant NCDOT project that will widen Wayne Memorial Drive from New Hope Road to US 70 

bypass from two lanes to four lanes, while adding turning lanes on New Hope Road.  This will require utility relocations and 
the acquisition of right-of-way. 

 
At the Council meeting on August 21, 2023, Council accepted the NCDOT appraisal offer and agreed with moving 

ahead with NCDOT project U-4753 as soon as possible. The City is granted the authority to dispose of the property through 
G.S. 160A-274.  

 
To move ahead with the project, NCDOT needs to acquire right-of-way from two City owned parcels. The first parcel 

is number 3610446826 and listed as 2.8 acres.  The land needed is roughly .3 acres, reducing the property to roughly 2.5 
acres, which does not adversely affect the proposed future buildout of the property.  The project requires the contractor to 
replace portions of the walking trail that runs along New Hope Road.  As required by NCDOT practices, an appraisal on the 
property was performed and the fair market value offered for the above easements and right-of-way is $161,650.   

 
The second parcel is number 3610546722.  This is the City right-of-way area that contains the heavily used multi-

purpose path that runs adjacent to New Hope Road.  This path will need to be relocated, but it will be put back in place per 
the contract.  The amount of determined value for this .740 parcel is $75,325 of which $56,850 is for land acquisition and 
$18,475 for acquired improvements.   

 
The total offer for both acquisitions is $236,975.  NCDOT requests that the City of Goldsboro accept the appraised 

value as compensation for the acquisition of the rights-of-way and easement.  
 
Staff consulted with a licensed commercial real estate broker who confirmed in their professional opinion that the 

NCDOT appraisal offer was an accurate fair market representation of property worth. 
   
City staff recommended that Council approve the following entitled resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk 

to accept the NCDOT appraisal offer to purchase right-of-way from two City owned parcels for NCDOT project U-4753 
widening Wayne Memorial Drive.  

 
Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes). 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-59 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO ACCEPT THE 
NCDOT APPRAISAL OFFER TO PURCHASE RIGHT-OF-WAY FROM TWO CITY OWNED PARCELS FOR NCDOT 
PROJECT U-4753 WIDENING WAYNE MEMORIAL DRIVE” 

 
Workers' Compensation Coverage Exemption Certification Form. Resolution Adopted. The item was presented 

by Tim Salmon, City Manager. 
 
NCGS Chapter 97: Workers’ Compensation Act, requires contractors with three (3) or more employees to have 

workers’ compensation insurance. It is presumed that the risk with less employees does not necessitate this insurance for 
most organizations.  

 
At the Council meeting on December 19, 2022, Council denied a request from City staff that workers’ compensation 

not be required for the Parks and Recreation sports booking agent and officials.  
 
At the Council meeting on August 21, 2023, Council concurred that a resolution should be brought back to the 

September 5, 2023 meeting, to authorize the City Manager to waive the workers' compensation insurance requirement on a 



13 of 14 
 

case-by-case basis, for those who certify it is not required by NCGS, via the Workers’ Compensation Coverage Exemption 
Certification Form. 

 
Some department heads have asked for the workers’ compensation restrictions to be waived in some “low risk” 

situations, to contract with small business owners or independent contractors who do quality work at an affordable price 
with one or two employees (e.g., public speakers, IT support, sports officials). The current workers’ compensation 
restrictions will be very difficult to sustain with Parks and Recreation personnel working overtime as sports officials.  

 
A City Workers’ Compensation Coverage Exemption Certification Form was developed for Council consideration to 

enable the City Manager on a case-by-case basis to waive the workers’ compensation requirement, when the benefit 
outweighs the risk and potential cost. 

 
Staff recommended that Council approve the following entitled resolution authorizing the City Manager to waive the 

workers' compensation insurance requirement on a case-by-case basis, for those who certify it is not required by NCGS, via 
the Workers’ Compensation Coverage Exemption Certification Form.  

 
Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Batts (6 Ayes). 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-60 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO WAIVE THE WORKERS' 
COMPENSATION INSURANCE REQUIREMENT ON A CASE-BY-CASE BASIS” 

 
End of Consent Agenda. 
 
Items Requiring Individual Action.  
Accept or Reject Initial Bid and Authorize Finance to Advertise for Upset Bids for 200 N. Carolina Street to 

Housing Authority of the City of Goldsboro. Bid Rejected. The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance 
Director.    

 
Staff has received an offer to purchase city/county owned property.  Council must either accept or reject the offer, and 

if accepted authorize advertisement for upset bids (G.S. 160A-266 and 160A-269).   
  
The following offer has been received for the sale of surplus real property under Negotiated offer, advertisement, and 

upset bid process (G.S. §160A-266(a) (3)) 
  
 200 N. Carolina Street 

Offeror:  Housing Authority of the City of Goldsboro 
 Offer:  $1,700.00 
 Bid Deposit: $85.00 
 Pin #: 2599773020 
 Tax Value: $3,320.00  Zoning: R-6 
 
The offer is at least 50% of the tax value of the property.  The bid deposit of 5% has been received in the form of a 

business check.  The Planning Department shall notify the adjoining property owners via mail that the property is available 
for sale via upset bid. 

 
Staff recommended that the City Council, by motion, accept or reject offer on 200 N. Carolina Street, and if accepted, 

adopt the following resolution authorizing Finance to advertise for upset bids. 
  
Councilwoman Jones asked for clarification regarding the item. Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director, provided 

clarification. Council discussed the item.  
 
Councilwoman Jones made a motion that the City move forward with the advertisement and the Uzzells have an 

opportunity to bid on the property. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway. Council discussed the motion.  
 
Councilwoman Jones clarified that she was making a motion to reject the bid, and make it fair for the Uzzells. The 

clarified motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.  
 
City Manager’s Report. Tim Salmon, City Manager, shared the following comments: I hope everyone had a Happy 

Labor Day. It was good to get out with family and friends, I hope for everybody. I appreciate the City employees who are 
laboring everyday around here. Specifically, I'd like to thank those who worked very hard before tropical storm Idalia came 
and worked to clear the stormwater drains so I did not receive any reports of flooding as we might normally have under such 
rainfall in a short amount of time. So, good work on those employees that did that. There are going to be board vacancies 
that will be briefed at an upcoming Council meeting, so those City residents that are out there that would like to be part of 
boards if you could get your applications into the City Clerk 's office that would be great. We've got the Historic District 
Commission, there is one vacancy and zero applicants; and the Recreation Advisory Commission, there are two vacancies 
and only one applicant. So please consider that and join our boards. Last, I'd like to mention North Carolina Freedom Fest 
which again starts this Friday and Saturday. Friday should be a good day we're looking at potentially some weather issues 
on Saturday but hopefully all goes off without a hitch. 



o °' „ ' 

ani

o ' " 

a

oi

o °' °

o° 

E 

o

04o

o

U

0

0

O  °  `

3

0  

cn

p  

00"   

0  

00   

b

0

O° -

d

i

atii

o

0

o

v, 

o .

d

U0
0

0

b

N0
Q

O

0

0

0

n

O> .

k

y

a? "

o

0 ° 

0

o

0

G '

4- 

SU. 

O

U

Q. 

p> 

N

cid

O10, U •' 

0 -

0

N -

8

sU. 

O

U

0

o

oo

a

o

3

3

U

3

3

0

0

p> 

aoi

3

o

o $ >, 

0

a>
i

aoi -

d

O0

0 }' 

R1" •—'

S"" 

U

0

0 >' 

0

3

cd '"'' 

cd

Z

O +••" 

0

E0

fa

to

E

0

o

co

an i

Ca

O

t3

U

O

yam+ 
U

UC" 

O

N

OU
v0i

p

cz

u

U

0

0., 

0

U

bo

H~ 

O

v >' 

O

y

3

O

0jLL'

0b `
rn

y0 ' 
O :

00b0pqn ,.
O

o

cn '

sU

0

cd

O

it

N

0U

3cqj
o

3  

cz =

U

O

4". 

0 ° 

i 

n

y°o

cz

0

ch

CZ

0

o

ri;-; 

a

ami

ono
c °' 

b

0

0

y

p

0

0

3

o ? ° 

0

0

O

on , , ' ° 

0

b

0

rA .- 

0

bn `+ 

3

O

0

u0
O

O

o ° $ 

3 

y

o

3

ami "

d , "' 

0

0

p

0

c= 

O 

1

U

cd

0

0

U

0

cd : 

on
C > ° 

O

O

0

O " 

0

6 

U

0

t". 

F -- 

O .

fl

0

0

0

O

cd .

0

c0j

p

cid : ° 

0

b

cn = 

C ) 

0

O

O '

b

y

a -

o

o

o

3

o -

fl

0

0

0

4. > 

ai

p. -

N

a [

tel

0

0

b

0

o .

0

N ° 

b ° 

0

cd  ., 

O

ani

J

wp

cd , `

E

cd

a 

o

Gz" 

0

0

v, . 

cd

0

cd

4 .

4

0 >, . 

V

0

CZ

tocd
0
i --

i

O

0

3

r. 

0

3 -

El >; -

Q

a

A : 

W .

d

a

U

GG

C7

a1

o

a

v . 

o

3

U >, 

o

U

o

0

0

g

o

o -

d

O

0 -

d

cd

O

o

yc

d

p

p

o

z

f

0

P 

3 ` 

4

x .

Q ( 

ani   

0

0  ° " 

bA

0 ° ° 

0

cd

U

Z

N

U

U

U

U . 

ow ,

3

w' + 

o

Q. 

0

cid

0

p

ami

3

ani

b

cd

mon

O

O

O .

s 

vi

O

0 >, °° 

U > 

0

w

a

0 ° 

0° 

0

0, ° 

0

0

cz

0

1

cd

9 --

i

C  

O

C14   

3

U  

U  

b  •-. 

N0Uw

v0v



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 61
RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY

LYNN DOUG BETHEA, JR. AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO

FOR MORE THAN 22 YEARS

WHEREAS, Lynn Doug Bethea, Jr. retires on October 1, 2023, as a Police Captain with more than 22
years of service with the Goldsboro Police Department; and

WHEREAS, Doug began his career on January 17, 2001, as a Police Officer with the Goldsboro Police
Department; and

WHEREAS, on September 27, 2006, Doug was promoted to Police Investigator with the Goldsboro
Police Department; and

WHEREAS, on April 16, 2014, Doug was promoted to Police Seargent with the Goldsboro Police
Department; and

WHEREAS, on October 24, 2018, Doug was promoted to Police Captain with the Goldsboro Police
Department, where he has served until his retirement; and

WHEREAS, Doug has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the
admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, 

City employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Doug their deep appreciation and
gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that we express to Doug our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and good health
in his future endeavors. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full
force and effect from and after this

181h

day of September, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Cler

r



Item C



D













E











F



























G



Uj

y

O

O

C+ 

bcdC
N

m

cn

rA

O

O

O

mmIT- 
i

4

o

ai .

0

14

En.

p

E- 

a 

o

orA
YL300

W

Z

al

y 

V

w " >, 

w

ou

cd

a) 

N

Uo
0

O

U

O

VA

G6

0

O

ds

i

U .

O

U

O  ^° 

p. 

p

dd

o

ami

a

o

Go

w

q  

2

o

3

O 

0

0 , 

Awa
U

v, 

3

v •, 

C6

2°

10anChi

O

a 

o

w

ani ° 

Q. 

o 

n

i

b

W

W '""' 

O   

y

a" 

N
C/

1  

4-

y ^

d  .

yr

O •+" , . 

Q  

4] 

y  . :' •^+ ^

fl

O

cn

O •

U

a) 

N 

o °

O

a) ```

L yyy

w

3 + 

a'

bi

o .

fl

v

N

p

v

b > 

cd

N

x 

O

O ., 

s,°" 

U  

O  >, 

O .

d

b

Y

C) 

co

ti  

a) 

GQ ¢ 

vi '" 

a

a

O

o ;. • 

ca

y

a0i

U

arn
U

aUi

as

Z

r"

OO
o-

d

N

U

v

o '

S

o °'' ° 

a>> 

o `

S

a

o

vC,
3

aj

w

v

w 

0 • 

o

w

w

r.' 

i 

y4, 

y

SOA

U

W

rn

coy
O

O

O

cd + .-: 

w >, 

O

m '— 

c .

o '  > 

c 

U }? 

0

m ' 

A '

b

U

dO
ate,': 

a' 

C40)

o

d'" 

c

ami

oo
CA7

CIS'

C

C

O + 

O .

O

W

Y] 

y

N

O

C

W

W

5

Y 

0

O

p. 

v

M, 

X40

y

4 

o

A `.,  

p..

O

o    

p

v] 

ami

u

p

a 

a 

O .. 

f, •.

o

N ,
c? 

U

a) 

0

o

b

f 

O

Cl.

0

2 - ^" +-  

U > 

cd  >, 

CM

O

ff. <

1

c "" 

0

Ci + 

F. 

jW

W

U

Y ''" 

n ,

moi •• `

n •

s: 

I

69 .•

moi

co" 

b

F. 

y  

g

0 +

c+ 

N
i 

C) " >' 

C1'  

V] 

O
C," 

O

m +- 

y

3 •, .

Ly

U

F. 

U) 

pp

U

u

s: 

N

U — 

Gy

v>'
i

P

a) 

c 

G 

U•. 

O

q

W

a, - 

a, 

a

p,  „° 

Q.. , ... _

O

p 

s

y

o

d

Z

ani

z

b

o

ff

N

w

U '

3

yCZo
n. 

o

i

a) 

3

sy

o

0

0

4~ (

S 

4w

b ' 

C: " 

U - 

m . 

Q

0

p

p( 

p( 

U

a) _ 

Cc

p

cd ++ 

y 

y

4 

O

O

eC

U .+ 

D . 

O

vi

rn  

0 ... 

CC (

D

N

O

N

bA

9b

rA

O

a) "

on
a

w

a33'
n-

dv-

ooq

r. 



H



O

b -

4

0

0

0cq

U

coo

Q

0

10, 

oz

v

g 

U

o

C) 

1w

o

cnV

O

ca

w

Y

i1

czN `

Z

OU

d

cd

m

NN

Y

A

00

o

i

4

oz
O

wwa)

c- 

o

1° 

F

N > 

w

0

GJ

cz

C) 

E

3 

N

3w

30> 

z 

o

O

A

M0
L6

d

Lo

0

Lo

M t

Lo

EAII

c!?

1

Ge

G911

G09

GF} 

Lo603

GPI

0000Ln00a>

0m

or+

c

o 

oc

tio0

0•

t-

0- 

V

o - 

O

O

cq

Lo - 

m

0

0

0

0

to

0o0oc 
O

CV

t

O

tfJ

Ef311

Ef3

m
cl

0

0

0cq

0

0

0

U

C) 

1w

a 

a

w

GO

ani

E" 

d

cd

m

A

00

A

M0

L6

d

Lo

0

Lo

M t

Lo

EAII

c!?

1

Ge

G911

G09

GF} 

Lo603

GPI

0000Ln
00a>

0m

or+
c

o 

oc

tio0

0•

t-

0- 

V

o - 

O

O

cq

Lo - 

m

0

0

0

0

to
0o0oc 

O

CV

t

O

tfJ

Ef311

Ef3

m
cl0cq0

wC) 

1w

a

w

GO

ani

E" 

d

cd

m

00

oz

wwa)
c- 

C

F

cz

H

F

HUOw



I



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 
6

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and County of Wayne jointly own certain real property at 200 N. 
Carolina Street ( Pin #2599773020); and

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269 permits the city to sell real property by upset

bid, after receipt of an offer for the property; and

WHEREAS, the City has received an offer to purchase the property described above, in the amount of
1, 800. 00 ( One Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars and no/ 100) submitted by Norris L. Uzzell
Offeror); and

WHEREAS, Offeror has paid the required five percent ( 5%) deposit on his/ her offer in the amount of

1, 800. 00 ( One Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars and No/ 100); 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina, that: 

1) The City Council declares this property as surplus. 
2) The City Council authorizes sale of the property described above through the upset bid procedure of

North Carolina General Statute § 160A- 269. 

3) The Finance Director shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published in a newspaper of

general circulation within its jurisdiction. The notice shall describe the property and the amount of the
offer, and shall state the terms under which the offer may be upset. 

4) The Planning Department shall notify the adjoining property owners by U.S. mail that the property is
being offered for sale under the upset bid procedure. 

5) Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a sealed bid with their offer to

the office of the Finance Director at 200 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530 during normal
business hours within 10 days after the notice of sale is published. At the conclusion of the 10 -day
period, the Finance Director shall open the bids, if any, and the highest such bid will become the new
offer. If there is more than one bid in the highest amount, the first such bid received will become the

new offer. 

6) Upset offer and deposit shall be delivered in a sealed envelope. The written offer proposal must

include the name of the person or business making the offer, address of said property, and Wayne
County parcel identification number. The offer shall be signed by the individual or person with
signature authority if a business entity. The outside of the sealed envelope should have the address of
the property, the words " Upset Bid" and include the address of the Property. 

7) The City of Goldsboro reserves the right to reject any or all offers at any time. 
8) If a qualifying higher bid is received, the Finance Director shall cause a new notice of upset bid to be

published, and shall continue to do so until a 10 -day period has passed without any qualifying upset
bid having been received. At that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to the City
Council. 

9) A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten percent ( 10%) of the

first $ 1, 000. 00 of that existing offer and five percent ( 5%) of the remainder of that existing offer. 
10) A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount of five percent ( 5%) of

the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier' s check, or certified check. The city will return the



deposit on any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying
higher bid is received; provided that sufficient time has elapsed to allow for the payment draft, if by
check, to clear the City' s central depository and be credited to such, the return of the deposit will then

be issued within 10 days of confirmation of clearing. The city will refund the deposit of the final high
bidder at closing or apply to the sales price, as determined at the time of closing by the Finance
Director. 

11) Any Offeror' s bid deposit shall be refunded if it is not the final high bidder; or if mutually agreeable
terms cannot be settled upon if no upset bids are received, provided that sufficient time has elapsed to

allow for the payment draft, if by check, to clear the City' s central depository and be credited to such. 
Refund will be issued within 10 days of confirmation of clearing. 

12) The terms of the final sale are: 

a) City Council must approve the final high offer before the sale is closed, which it will do within 30
days after the final upset bid period has passed. 

b) The Wayne County Board of Commissioners must approve the final sale by concurrence after
final approval by City Council. 

c) Buyer must pay with cash, cashier' s check or certified check at the time of closing. 
d) Buyer must pay closing costs. 

13) The City reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time before the final high bid is
accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids. 

14) If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set forth above is hereby
accepted. City staff is authorized to seek concurrence from the Wayne County Board of
Commissioners and upon such approval, the appropriate city officials are authorized to execute the
instruments necessary to convey the property to Offeror. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
18t' 

day of September, 2023. 

LwoVk  TO, %_- If
v 







21.45

21.45

63

52

360.27
367.28

50

60

60

84.18

55

59.05

120

83.45

74.13 110

289

118

60

54

210

210

54

35

60

60

84

84

55

105.45

110

105.45

40

60

47

100

50
140

140

35
150

35

35

40 107

100

60

47

50

60

208

80

160

80

60

50

140

60

80

60
60160

C

C

Z

B

B

A

A

B

D

B

A

207

103

505

507

503

206

110

201

407

413

103

208

405

204

210

404

112

413

404

207

406

201

201

201

205

413

112

110103

N
 C

ar
o

lin
a 

S
t

W Mulberry St

cgwynn
Typewritten Text
200 N. Carolina Streetas of 8/28/2023



8/23/23, 8:25 AM Appraisal Card

realestate.waynegov.com/ITSNet/AppraisalCard.aspx?idP=2001969&Action=Auto 1/1

WAYNE COUNTY 8/23/2023 8:25:14 AM
WAYNE COUNTY &        CITY OF GOLDSBORO Return/Appeal Notes:   Parcel: 2599773020
200 N CAROLINA ST PLAT: /UNIQ ID 47355
79266550   ID NO: 12000068005001

COUNTYWIDE ADVALOREM TAX (100), CITY - GOLDSBORO (100)       CARD NO. 1 of 1  
Reval Year: 2019 Tax Year: 2023 N CAROLINA ST 1.0000 LT  SRC=  
Appraised by on 01702 WEST SIDE DOWNTOWN TW-12 CI-01FR-00EX-2 AT- LAST ACTION 20201027
CONSTRUCTION DETAIL MARKET VALUE  DEPRECIATION CORRELATION OF VALUE

TOTAL POINT VALUE  
BUILDING ADJUSTMENTS
TOTAL ADJUSTMENT
FACTOR
TOTAL QUALITY INDEX  

USE MOD
Eff.
Area QUAL

BASE
RATE RCN EYB AYB CREDENCE TO  

08 00       % GOOD  DEPR. BUILDING VALUE - CARD 0

TYPE: MULTIPLE RESIDENCE  

STYLE:  

 

DEPR. OB/XF VALUE - CARD 0
MARKET LAND VALUE - CARD 3,320
TOTAL MARKET VALUE - CARD 3,320
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - CARD 3,320
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE - PARCEL 3,320
TOTAL PRESENT USE VALUE - PARCEL 0
TOTAL VALUE DEFERRED - PARCEL 0
TOTAL TAXABLE VALUE - PARCEL $ 3,320

PRIOR
BUILDING VALUE 0
OBXF VALUE 0
LAND VALUE 3,320
PRESENT USE VALUE 0
DEFERRED VALUE 0
TOTAL VALUE 3,320

PERMIT
CODE DATE NOTE NUMBER AMOUNT

ROUT: WTRSHD:
SALES DATA

OFF.
RECORD DATE DEED

TYPE Q/UV/I
INDICATE SALES

PRICEBOOK PAGE MOYR
03561 0348 10 2020 WD Q V 0
01044 0332 1 1983  U I 0

HEATED AREA  
NOTES

field chk 10/25/12
very bad shape
standing, but thats it
P3-14 DEMO FOR 2015

SUBAREA

TYPE
GS

AREA %
RPL
CS

FIREPLACE   
SUBAREA
TOTALS    

CODEQUALITYDESCRIPTIONCOUNTLTHWTHUNITS
UNIT
PRICE

ORIG %
COND BLDG#

SIZE
FACT AYBEYB

ANN DEP
RATE OVR

%
COND

OB/XF DEPR.
VALUE

TOTAL OB/XF VALUE 0

BUILDING DIMENSIONS    
LAND INFORMATION
HIGHEST
AND BEST
USE

USE
CODE

LOCAL
ZONING

FRON
TAGE DEPTH

DEPTH
/ SIZE

LND
MOD

COND
FACT

OTHER ADJUSTMENTS
AND NOTES
  RF   AC   LC  TO  OT

ROAD
TYPE

LAND
UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL
LAND
UNITS

UNT
TYP

TOTAL
ADJST

ADJUSTED
UNIT PRICE

LAND
VALUE

OVERRIDE
VALUE

LAND
NOTES

0100 0100 R-6 60 100 0.8500 2 1.0000
  

 65.00 60.000 FF 0.850 55.25 3315 0 

TOTAL MARKET LAND DATA   3,320  
TOTAL PRESENT USE DATA     



J



RESOLUTION NO. 2023 - 6 3
RESOLUTION TO APPLY FOR STATE GRANT ASSISTANCE TO CONDUCT AN

ASSET INVENTORY AND ASSESSMENT ( AIA) WASTEWATER MASTER PLAN

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro, in cooperation with Wayne County, and the Towns of Eureka, Fremont, 
Pikeville, and Mount Olive, have collaborated on a Merger/ Regionalization Feasibility ( MRF) study, which is
nearly complete. In addition, the City of Goldsboro has completed an Asset Inventory and Assessment ( AIA) 
Project for the water distribution and sewage collection systems as required by the State; which has resulted in
productive dialogue and engineering evaluations of multiple alternatives for regional sewer collaboration; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro, the County of Wayne, and the Towns of Eureka, Fremont, Pikeville, and
Mount Olive, have committed to continuing the cooperation to the extent necessary to perform a supplemental
Asset Inventory and Assessment ( AIA) study that will serve as a master plan in support of the MRF study, and for
the purposes of ensuring the viability of all systems involved; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro, as the lead agency for this study, has need for and intends to request
State grant assistance for the Project for the regional effort on behalf of the six ( 6) units listed above, to conduct a

supplemental Asset Inventory and Assessment ( AIA) Project that is critical to allow the Region to best understand
the condition of the Goldsboro Wastewater Plant in terms of serving the Greater Wayne County Area Wastewater
Utility MRF Study ( the Project). 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North
Carolina: 

1. That the City of Goldsboro, the Applicant, will manage and coordinate for the group, both the work to
be completed and the financing of the Project, if approved for a State grant award. 

2. That the Applicant will provide for sufficient support, oversight, and coordination for the Project, and

ensure all the regional partners are made aware of progress throughout the Project. 

3. That the Applicant will ensure all regional partners will receive draft and final deliverables from the

Project at the same time as the Applicant so they can share them with their governing bodies. 

4. That the Applicant will partner and work with other units of local government or utilities in conducting
the Project, including Wayne County, and the Towns of Eureka, Fremont, Pikeville, and Mount Olive, to
the extent they remain active participants in the Project. 

5. That Tim Salmon, City Manager, and David Ham, Mayor, the Authorized Representatives, and
successors so titled, are hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Applicant
with the State of North Carolina for a loan and/ or grant to aid in the study described above. 

6. That the Authorized Representatives, and successors so titled, are hereby authorized and directed to
furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection with such
application or the Project, to make the assurances as contained above, and to execute such other

documents as may be required in connection with the application. 

7. That the Applicant has substantially complied, or will substantially comply, with all Federal, State, and
local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, and funding conditions applicable to the Project and to Federal
and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
18a' 

day of September, 2023. 

w :11 ISO" tv- * - I  %77a M, Mayor

Attested by: A., 

Laura Getz, City ClerfO



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- G I

RESOLUTION TO APPLY FOR STATE GRANT ASSISTANCE TO CONDUCT A

MERGER/ REGIONALIZATION FEASIBILITY ( MRF) GOVERNANCE AND FUNDING STUDY

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro, in cooperation with Wayne County, and the Towns of Eureka, 
Fremont, Pikeville, and Mount Olive, have collaborated on a Merger/Regionalization Feasibility (MRF) study, 
which is nearly complete; which has resulted in productive dialogue and engineering evaluations of multiple
alternatives for regional sewer collaboration; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro, the County of Wayne, and the Towns of Eureka, Fremont, Pikeville, 
and Mount Olive, have committed to continuing the cooperation to the extent necessary to perform a supplemental
MRF study for the purposes of ensuring the viability of all systems involved; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro, as the lead agency for this study, has need for and intends to request
State grant assistance for the Project for the regional effort on behalf of the six ( 6) units listed above, to conduct

the supplemental MRF study, known as the Greater Wayne County Area Wastewater Utility MRF Study ( the
Proj ect). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina: 

1. That the City of Goldsboro, the Applicant, will manage and coordinate for the group, both the work to
be completed and the financing of the Project, if approved for a State grant award. 

2. That the Applicant will provide for sufficient support, oversight, and coordination for the Project, and

ensure all the regional partners are made aware of progress throughout the Project. 

3. That the Applicant will ensure all regional partners will receive draft and final deliverables from the

Project at the same time as the Applicant so they can share them with their governing bodies. 

4. That the Applicant will partner and work with other units of local government or utilities in

conducting the Project, including Wayne County, and the Towns of Eureka, Fremont, Pikeville, and
Mount Olive, to the extent they remain active participants in the Project. 

5. That Tim Salmon, City Manager, and David Ham, Mayor, the Authorized Representatives, and
successors so titled, are hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the
Applicant with the State of North Carolina for a loan and/ or grant to aid in the study described above. 

6. That the Authorized Representatives, and successors so titled, are hereby authorized and directed to
furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection with such
application or the Project, to make the assurances as contained above, and to execute such other

documents as may be required in connection with the application. 

7. That the Applicant has substantially complied, or will substantially comply, with all Federal, State, 
and local laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, and funding conditions applicable to the Project and to
Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
18th

day of September, 2023

Attested by: 

rt—& 

Laura Getz, City CIAO



FORM FOR CERTIFICATION BY THE RECORDING OFFICER 

 

The undersigned duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Goldsboro does hereby 
certify:  That the above/attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution 
authorizing the filing of an application with the State of North Carolina, as regularly adopted at a 
legally convened meeting of the Goldsboro City Council duly held on the ________ day of 
_______________, 20_____;  and, further, that such resolution has been fully recorded in the 
journal of proceedings and records in my office.   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this ________ day of 
_______________, 20____. 

 

 

______________________________________ 
(Signature of Recording Officer) 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
(Title of Recording Officer) 
 
 



K



1- 1

RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 5

RESOLUTION TO INCREASE POLICE DEPARTMENT AND FIRE DEPARTMENT PAY

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro Police Department and Fire Department currently have several
position vacancies; and

WHEREAS, salaries have been a contributing factor for voluntary separations; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro desires to retain the police officers and firefighters
currently employed, and provide incentive for future hires; and

WHEREAS, Council agreed at the September 5, 2023, Council Meeting to implement Police
Department and Fire Department Proposal B pay plans starting the first pay period in October
2023; and

WHEREAS, Police Department sworn officer pay will increase 10% or the minimum of the

new pay grade as follows: Officer Trainee 72 to 75; Officer 73 to 76- 79; Corporal 76 to 79; 
Sergeant 77 to 81; Captain 80 to 83; Major 85 to 86; and the Chief of Police will remain at 89 and

not receive a pay increase; and

WHEREAS, Fire Department pay will increase 5% or the minimum of the new pay grade as
follows: Firefighter Trainee 70 to 72; Firefighter 71 to 73; Senior Firefighter 71 to 74; Fire

Engineer 74 to 76; Fire Engineer 11 74 to 77; Fire Captain 78 to 79; Fire Captain 11 78 to 80; 

Battalion Chief 81 to 82; Assistant Fire Chief will remain at 85; the Deputy Fire Chief will
remain at 88; and the Fire Chief will remain at 89. The Fire Chief, Executive Assistant, 

Administrative Assistant, and part- time personnel will receive no additional pay raise. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that Police Department and Fire Department pay grades are increased
and pay is to be adjusted accordingly starting October 4, 2023. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall
be in full force and effect from and after this 18' day of September, 2023

c

Cvcr 

y 9
David Ham, Mayor

Attested by: 
y

Laura Getz, City Cler' 



City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

August 2023 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater

10. Parks and Recreation-GEC
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

- Report not submitted 

- Report not submitted 

Item L 



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
August 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  September 11, 2023 
 
• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for a regular monthly meeting on Sept. 8th. 

The MLK Subcommittee did not meet in August. 
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) did not have a quorum for its August meeting. 

 
• Community Relations Activities:  

1. Staff attended a Supervisors Training with Dev. Associates on Aug. 1st.  
2. Staff completed department orientation with UNC Lead Fellow on Aug. 7th.  
3. Staff attended the monthly Executive Board meeting of CALM on Aug. 15th.  
4. Staff presented at Candidates Academy on Aug. 16th.  
5. Staff attended the regular meeting of CALM on Aug. 29th.  
6. Staff engaged in 5 department staff meetings in August. 
 

• Community Development Activities:  
1. Staff attended a Neighborly Software Check-In meeting on Aug. 2nd.  
2. Staff attended a HUD-scheduled FY17 & FY19 HOME Monitoring Close-out on Aug. 4th.   
3. Staff Region 10 Continuum of Care (CoC) monthly meeting on Aug. 9thand Region 10 Coordinated Entry weekly 

case conference meetings on Aug. 9th & 23rd.    
4. Staff attended Choice Neighborhood Planning meetings on Aug. 16th and 18th. 
5. Staff attended a Development Services meeting on Aug. 30th.  
6. Staff engaged in 3 virtual consultations with HUD for the month of August. 

     
• The Department received one (1) housing complaint and twenty-five (25) requests for assistance for the month of 

August. *Please refer to Community Relations & Development Addendum for a detailed summary.   
2023 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 1 1 1 1 4 0 2 1     2 
Consumer/Other 
Requests 

27 36 14 15 19 25 32 25     24 

 
2022 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 3 0 0 0 3 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 3 
Consumer & Other 
Requests 

24 36 25 141 69 43 27 32 27 19 20 20 40 

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT Addendum 
August 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  September 11, 2023 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
         

 
Nature of Complaint       

 
Resolution 

Housing – Neighboring 
vacant property causing 
flooding in yard 

No Formal Complaint Filed 
– Consulted Planning, Code 
Enforcement, Water Dept. 
who is actively investigating 

 
Assistance with Resources 
  

Resource Requested            
   

Number of 
Requests 

Resolution 

Home Repair 8 Application provided /Application follow-up provided/Referred Mt. 
Olive resident to Hope Restorations 

First-Time Homebuyer 
 

7 Provided program information and/or update on submitted 
application  

Food Assistance 2 Provided Community Resources Listing & Food resources 
Homelessness 2 Completed Region 10 Continuum of Care Coordinated Entry Intake & 

Assessment; Submitted to Eastpointe 
Mortgage payment 
assistance 

1 Referred to NCHFA’s Mortgage Assistance Program 

Seeking Wheelchair 1 Referred to MCPD 
City Property Purchase 
Inquiry 

1 Notified caller that due to recent fire, property would be demolished 

Help for Ukraine Family 1 Provided Community Resources Listing 
Seeking Housing 1 Referred to 4Day Movement 
Veteran Burial Plots 1 Contacted and referred to Eastern Carolina State Veterans Cemetery 
Total Requests: 25  

 



 

 
 

1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
August 2023 
Prepared by:  Jonathan Perry                     
Date Prepared:  09-08-23 
                
Stoney Creek Greenway   

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 
linear feet; 

• Final payment has been made to the contractor; 
• Staff is working on project closeout with NCDOT. 

 
Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 

• Staff is working with DWI to close out this project. 
 
Mount Olive Pickle Expansion 

• Phase 1 has been completed and Mount Olive Pickle is in operation; 
• Phase 2, River Bend Pump Station, is under construction and will take approximately a year to 

complete. 
 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections are completed for August 2023. 

 
Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 

• Final scope of engineering services has been approved by DWI;  
• CDM Smith continues to work on the final report and to facilitate meetings with all interested parties 

in Wayne County; 
• The final report is anticipated for submittal in the Fall. 

 
Stormwater Inventory Project 

• Projected completion October 2023. 
 

2” Galvanized Water Line Project 
• NCDWI awarded the City a grant for the project in the amount of $5,999,395; 
• Offer and acceptance documentation was submitted by staff in September 2022; 
• Staff is working on the design phase of this project. 

 
Lead and Copper Inventory 

• Staff is coordinating the information required by EPA for lead and copper inventories; 
• One bid was submitted at the bid opening held on August 31, 2023; 
• Project is readvertised for bid opening on September 19th at 2:00 pm. 

 
 



2 

SJAFB MAG Meter 
• This project is in the design phase; 
• Staff working with on-call engineers to obtain pricing for task order. 

 
NCSU Floodprint Project 

• Staff is working with NCSU on potential project applications for Fall 2023. 
 
2023 Resurfacing Project 

• The resurfacing project consists of resurfacing Carolina Street from Ash Street to 
the railroad approximately 200 ft. north of Vine Street and Vine Street from George Street to 
Carolina Street; 

• Three bids were opened on August 31, 2023 with Daniels Inc. of Garner, NC submitting the low bid 
amount of $278,150.95; 

• Staff will make a recommendation at the City Council Meeting in October. 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
AUGUST 2023 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: September 8, 2023 

 

FY 22-23
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues July-22 Adjusted Budget July-23 Collected
General Fund 1,252,035$      51,806,657$        1,638,090$      3.16%
Utility Fund 1,582,546        26,321,744          1,993,356        7.57%
Downtown District Fund 642                  112,215               15                     0.01%
Occupancy Tax Fund 77,698             1,465,450            90,771             6.19%
Stormwater Fund 125,318           2,070,655            131,619           6.36%
     Total 3,038,239$      81,776,721$        3,853,851$      4.71%

Expenditures
General Fund 3,237,524$      51,806,657$        4,659,401$      8.99%
Utility Fund 1,456,492        26,321,744 1,562,610 5.94%
Downtown District Fund 3,318               112,215 100                  0.09%
Occupancy Tax Fund 32,718             1,465,450 27,173 1.85%
Stormwater Fund 212,085           2,070,655 501,452 24.22%
     Total 4,942,137$      81,776,721$        6,750,736$      8.26%

FY 22-23
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

July-22 Adjusted Budget July-23 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 292,521$         20,647,821$        138,127$         0.67%
Charges for Services 2,121,623        30,386,122          2,575,421        8.48%
Revenue Other Agencies (269,640)         16,395,317          (4)                     0.00%
Other Revenues 61,485             3,676,516            217,704           5.92%
Fund Balance -                   6,980,531            -                   0.00%
Shared Services 832,249           3,690,414            922,604           25.00%
     Total 3,038,239$      81,776,721$        3,853,851$      4.71%

Expenditures
Labor 1,225,475$      36,764,236$        2,290,429$      6.23%
Non-Labor 3,716,662        45,012,485          4,460,307        9.91%
     Total 4,942,137$      81,776,721$        6,750,736$      8.26%

FY 22-23 Actual Total 
Collections Actual July-23 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 46,249$           793$                     793$                
Surplus 81,510$           -$                      -$                 

FY 23-24

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 23-24

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2023 through June, 2024

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out
City Council Timothy Salmon Insurance Deductible Claims 477$                             -$                                    
City Council Timothy Salmon Title Search & Legal Fees -$                              (477)$                                 

Transfers - Aug 2023 - City Council 477$                             (477)$                                 

City Manager Timothy Salmon Education Reimbursement -$                              (803)$                                 
City Manager Timothy Salmon League Of Municipalities 803$                             -$                                    

Transfers - Aug 2023 - City Manager 803$                             (803)$                                 

Community Relations Felecia Williams Copy Machine Cost 131$                             -$                                    
Community Relations Felecia Williams Office Machine Maintenance -$                              (131)$                                 

Transfers - Aug 2023 - Community Relations 131$                             (131)$                                 

Downtown Development Erin Fonseca Operational Supplies -$                              (197)$                                 
Downtown Development Erin Fonseca Copy Machine Cost 197$                             -$                                    

Transfers - Aug 2023 - Downtown Development 197$                             (197)$                                 

IT Scott Williams Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              -$                                    
Transfers - Aug 2023 - IT -$                              -$                                    

PW Garage Rick Fletcher Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              -$                                    
Transfers - Aug 2023 - PW Garage -$                              -$                                    

PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies -$                              (268)$                                 
PW Buildings & Grounds Rick Fletcher Repairs (Insurance Claims) 268$                             -$                                    

Transfers - Aug 2023 - PW Buildings & Grounds 268$                             (268)$                                 

Planning Kenny Talton Salaries & Wages Regular 8,430$                          -$                                    
Planning Kenny Talton Copy Machine Cost 820$                             -$                                    
Planning Kenny Talton Contract Services -$                              (20,400)$                            
Planning Kenny Talton Salaries & Wages Part-Time 20,620$                        -$                                    
Planning Kenny Talton Social Security 1,580$                          -$                                    
Planning Kenny Talton Clean Lots -$                              (11,050)$                            

Transfers - Aug 2023 - Planning 31,450$                        (31,450)$                           

PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Machine/Equipment Maintenance 4,000$                          -$                                    
PW Solid Waste Rick Fletcher Recycling Fees -$                              (4,000)$                              

Transfers - Aug 2023 - PW Solid Waste 4,000$                          (4,000)$                              

Engineering Bobby Croom Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              -$                                    
Engineering Bobby Croom Operational Supplies -$                              (100)$                                 
Engineering Bobby Croom Copy Machine Cost 100$                             -$                                    
Engineering Bobby Croom Insurance Deductible Claims 1,099$                          -$                                    
Engineering Bobby Croom Maintenance Materials -$                              (1,099)$                              
Engineering Bobby Croom Consultant Fees -$                              (2,300)$                              
Engineering Bobby Croom Equipment Expense 2,300$                          -$                                    

Transfers - Aug 2023 - Engineering 3,499$                          (3,499)$                              

Fire Ron Stempien Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              -$                                    
Fire Ron Stempien Copy Machine Cost 25$                                -$                                    
Fire Ron Stempien Printing -$                              (25)$                                    

Transfers - Aug 2023 - Fire 25$                                (25)$                                   

Police Mike West Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              -$                                    
Transfers - Aug 2023 - Police -$                              -$                                    

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY24_1 - Copy.xlsx Transfers Aug 9/6/2023 12:26 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2023 through June, 2024

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Salaries & Wages Regular -$                              -$                                    
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Copy Machine Cost 150$                             -$                                    
Parks & Recreation Felicia Brown Salaries & Wages Part-Time -$                              (150)$                                 

Transfers - Aug 2023 - Parks & Recreation 150$                             (150)$                                 

Stormwater Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies -$                              (2,603)$                              
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Contract Services 350$                             -$                                    
Stormwater Rick Fletcher Utility Vehicle 2,253$                          -$                                    

Transfers - Aug 2023 - Stormwater 2,603$                          (2,603)$                              

Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Operational Supplies -$                              (14,818)$                            
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Uniforms 290$                             -$                                    
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Utility Valve Truck 7,944$                          -$                                    
Distribution & Collections Rick Fletcher Aerial Fire Truck 6,584$                          -$                                    

Transfers - Aug 2023 - Distribution & Collections 14,818$                        (14,818)$                           

Water Treatment Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (65)$                                    
Water Treatment Bert Sherman Copy Machine Cost 65$                                -$                                    

Transfers - Aug 2023 - Water Treatment 65$                                (65)$                                   

Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Salaries & Wages Regular 2,630$                          -$                                    
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (4,200)$                              
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Copy Machine Cost 160$                             -$                                    
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Uniforms 1,160$                          -$                                    
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Medical Treatment 100$                             -$                                    
Water Reclamation Bert Sherman Neuse River Basin Association 150$                             -$                                    

Transfers - Aug 2023 - Water Reclamation 4,200$                          (4,200)$                              

Compost Bert Sherman Machine/Equipment Maintenance -$                              (460)$                                 
Compost Bert Sherman Uniforms 460$                             -$                                    

Transfers - Aug 2023 - Compost 460$                             (460)$                                 

Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul & Aug 2023 63,146$                        (63,146)$                           
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul 2023-Aug 2023 63,146$                        (63,146)$                           

Budget Transfers Summary FY24_1 - Copy.xlsx Transfers Aug 9/6/2023 12:26 PM



Prepared Date: 9/6/23 6:36 AM
Prepared By: Terrie Webber
Reviewed Date: 9/6/23 3:44 PM
Reviewed By: Catherine F. Gwynn

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 8/31/2023 7/31/2023 8/31/2022 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 2,379,688.55$              2,129,040.46$              2,090,178.75$              0.00%
PNC - Money Market 4,117,965.02$              6,104,093.07$              5,439,284.52$              3.25%
PNC - Debit Account 2,000.00$                      2,000.00$                      1,000.00$                      0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 626,326.84$                 625,599.52$                 15,094,434.70$            1.52%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 43,201.01$                    260,613.35$                 250,888.10$                 n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 9,223,770.43$              9,182,949.69$              8,840,271.83$              n/a
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,579,049.76$              4,558,784.25$              4,389,035.63$              n/a
Truist MMA 25,071,717.04$            25,002,610.73$            -$                                3.25%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY21 & FY22 Rolling Stock -$                                -$                                414,252.65$                 n/a
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY23 Rolling Stock 2,380,324.54$              2,380,304.32$              -$                                0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 340,638.19$                 340,250.00$                 1,869,215.21$              1.34%
Totals 48,764,681.38$          50,586,245.39$          38,388,561.39$          

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
August 31, 2023

Cash & Investment FY2024.xlsx 8-31-23 9/6/2023 3:45 PM



Red Font-Not formally accepted by Council at this time.

Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report -August 2023
Reviewed: cfg 9/6/2023 3:21 PM

Granting 
Agency Granting Agency (Full) Grant Description

Source 
(Full) S Date Received

 Grant Portion 
Budget Amount  Budget Total 

 Current 
Amount Rec'd  

 Amount Rec'd  
Project to Date 

 Current 
Amount Spent  

 Amount Spent 
to Project to 

Date 

 Positive 
(Negative) Cash 

Flow 
NCHFA NCHFA ESFRLP ESFRLP Rehabilitation Loan Pool State S 1/24/2017 150,000$                   150,000$                -$                   117,975$          -$                   117,975$          -$                   

HUD CDBG FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 19,523$                     19,523$                  -$                   19,523$             -$                   19,523$             -$                   
HUD CDBG FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 353,346$                   353,346$                -$                   216,456$          -$                   216,456$          -$                   
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 351,643$                   351,643$                -$                   170,649$          -$                   170,649$          -$                   
HUD CDBG FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 354,302$                   354,302$                -$                   87,559$             -$                   87,559$             (0)$                     
HUD CDBG FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 358,697$                   358,697$                -$                   25,149$             -$                   25,149$             -$                   
HUD CDBG FY23-24 Entitlement Federal F -$                   -$                   2,105$               4,305$               (4,305)$             

NCHFA NCHFA URP-19 Urgent Repair State S 4/18/2019 100,000$                   100,000$                -$                   96,570$             -$                   96,570$             -$                   
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2 & 3) Federal F 10/7/2020 427,303$                   427,303$                -$                   133,792$          -$                   133,792$          -$                   
HUD HOME FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F 22,201$                     22,201$                  -$                   22,201$             -$                   22,201$             -$                   
HUD HOME FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F 73,557$                     73,557$                  -$                   67,480$             -$                   67,995$             (515)$                 
HUD HOME FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 22,910$                     22,910$                  -$                   22,910$             -$                   22,910$             -$                   
HUD HOME FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 214,732$                   214,732$                -$                   49,554$             -$                   49,554$             -$                   
HUD HOME FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 245,547$                   245,547$                -$                   28,472$             -$                   28,472$             -$                   
HUD HOME FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 252,710$                   252,710$                -$                   32,592$             9,550$               42,142$             (9,550)$             
HUD HOME FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 280,171$                   280,171$                -$                   27,467$             -$                   27,467$             (0)$                     
HUD HOME FY23-24 Entitlement Federal F -$                   6,637$               6,637$               (6,637)$             
HUD CDBG ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) Federal F 907,913$                   907,913$                -$                   36,436$             451$                  36,887$             (451)$                 

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Fire Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 4,050$                       4,050$                     -$                   4,786$               76$                    142$                  4,644$               
Debt Debt Funded Smeal Aerial Fire Truck Debt D 9/2022 1,151,600$               1,151,600$             -$                   1,136,500$       -$                   8,537$               1,127,963$       
Debt Debt Funded Herman Park Center Debt D Not Issued yet 11,150,000$             11,150,000$           -$                   376,000$          -$                   376,000$          -$                   

Donation Private Donations 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Private P Ongoing 80,000$                     80,000$                  -$                   32,691$             -$                   -$                   32,691$             
Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19-FY24 Private P Ongoing 632,943$                   632,943$                -$                   557,943$          -$                   251,072$          306,871$          

Debt Debt Funded 2018 Street Bonds (Debt #026-G) Debt D Ongoing 5,048,522$               5,048,522$             -$                   5,046,649$       -$                   4,980,164$       66,485$             
Debt Debt Funded Police/Fire Renovation (Debt #025-G) Debt D Ongoing 6,417,326$               6,417,323$             -$                   6,417,323$       16,980$             6,276,342$       140,981$          

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 45,636$                     45,636$                  -$                   46,386$             290$                  42,574$             3,812$               
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 18,252$                     18,252$                  1,721$               18,252$             -$                   14,477$             3,775$               

NC OSBM NC Office State Mgmt & Budget State Grants Misc-OSBM FY23 St Approp State S 2/2/2023 50,000$                     50,000$                  -$                   50,603$             369$                  7,513$               43,090$             
DOJ Dept. of Justice Federal Forfeiture Federal F Ongoing 274,138$                   274,138$                -$                   275,476$          9,566$               116,103$          159,373$          
DOJ NC Dept of Justice/US DOJ 2017 GPD Gang Equipment Grant Federal S 1/3/2019 21,366$                     21,366$                  -$                   18,408$             -$                   18,408$             0$                      
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2019 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/25/2019 47,003$                     47,003$                  -$                   42,435$             -$                   42,435$             -$                   
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2020 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/19/2020 34,766$                     34,766$                  -$                   30,381$             -$                   30,381$             -$                   
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2022 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 12/19/2022 23,574$                     23,574$                  -$                   16,413$             4,833$               21,266$             (4,853)$             

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 62,183$                     62,182$                  50$                    64,873$             -$                   19,487$             45,386$             
DOJ Dept. of Justice FY20 CRF Equipment Grant Federal F 6/8/2020 87,179$                     87,179$                  -$                   87,179$             -$                   87,179$             (0)$                     

FEMA FEMA Hurricane Florence Federal F 6/1/2019 2,340,773$               4,604,077$             -$                   4,982,838$       -$                   4,179,246$       803,592$          
FTA Federal Transportation Admin. FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Federal F 10/1/2018 6,751,751$               7,189,383$             -$                   7,385,809$       -$                   6,527,315$       858,494$          

FEMA FEMA GO FEMA GO-Source Capture Exhaust Systems FS 1, 2, 3, 5Federal F 7/24/2020 202,083$                   202,083$                -$                   202,083$          -$                   202,083$          -$                   
UST/Wayne Co US Treasury-Wayne Co. CARES Act Funding Federal F 9/9/2020 966,688$                   966,688$                -$                   966,688$          -$                   966,688$          (0)$                     

NC Tourism NC Tourism Recovery Grant CARES Act Funding - Marketing Travel & Tourism Federal F 10/6/2020 25,750$                     25,750$                  -$                   25,750$             -$                   25,750$             -$                   
Triangle YMCA Triangle YMCA Remote Learning Grant Parks & Recreation Federal F 11/18/2020 19,681$                     19,681$                  -$                   19,681$             -$                   19,681$             -$                   

UST US Treasury ARP Funding Federal F 3/11/2021 8,813,514$               8,813,514$             40,821$             9,223,771$       -$                   5,279,797$       3,943,974$       
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Phase IV Sewer Rehab Federal F 11/26/2019 8,905,676$               9,083,790$             -$                   4,851,571$       -$                   8,519,172$       (3,667,601)$      
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Sewer Rehab (Big Ditch & Carolina) Federal F 3/24/2021 1,235,100$               1,259,802$             -$                   639,892$          -$                   730,989$          (91,097)$           

Debt Debt Funded 2010 Sewer GO Bonds D#001-E Debt D 2010 8,605,000$               8,684,163$             261$                  489,923$          -$                   489,923$          (0)$                     
Goldenleaf Goldenleaf Foundation Hurr. Matthew Recovery Stormwater Drain. & Swr. RehabPrivate P 10/11/2017 598,574$                   598,574$                -$                   598,574$          -$                   598,574$          (0)$                     
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation Federal F Not Accepted Yet 3,058,000$               30,000$                  -$                   30,000$             -$                   30,000$             -$                   

DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA-D-VUR-0004 & AIA-W-VUR-0004State S 1/24/2022 300,000$                   304,500$                -$                   4,500$               -$                   302,300$          (297,800)$         
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR MRF Project MRF-M-VUR-0001 State S 1/24/2022 100,000$                   101,500$                -$                   1,500$               -$                   33,526$             (32,026)$           

City Fees Stormwater Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects City Fees C Ongoing 1,594,366$               1,594,366$             -$                   1,861,258$       22,984$             1,196,030$       665,228$          
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Install.Federal F 6/6/2019 32,400$                     265,513$                -$                   233,113$          -$                   265,513$          (32,400)$           
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Plate Settlers Project Federal F 3/7/2021 1,484,909$               1,484,909$             -$                   1,519,536$       -$                   1,517,550$       1,986$               
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Federal F Not Accepted Yet 5,999,395$               6,029,395$             -$                   30,000$             -$                   25,000$             5,000$               

Total 80,316,753$             80,540,776$           42,853$             48,443,567$     73,841$             44,377,459$     4,066,108$       

INFLOWS OUTFLOWS
Prepared: tlw 9/6/2023 8:36 AM

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Notes:
* DWI still reviewing 30+ Change Orders on Ph IV SRF.  Will authorize reimbursements after DWI has concluded the review process.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2023-08  Aug_1.xlsx Grants 2023-08 Aug 9/6/2023 4:16 PM



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
August 2023 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: September 8, 2023  
 

    

  The cause of fire incidents was determined 66% of the time. 33% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   
  

  The average response time of the first arriving unit was 5:08.   
  

  A full response within 8 minutes occurred 99% of all calls.   
  

  There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 0 Fire Service injuries and 0 Fire Service deaths.   
  

  The American Red Cross assisted 0 families due to displacement because of fire damage.   
 

   Fire prevention and community service activities included: Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 
County, Station Tours, Birthday Parades, Sprinkler Fun Days at the HUB and WA Foster, Safety Stand Down 
Day, National Night Out, and Truck Displays. We reached 249 Adults and 215 Children with fire prevention 
materials.  

 
 

 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning.  

    
1  

2023 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 277 222 229 262 263 277 389 415     292 2334 

Structure Fires: 2 3 7 4 4 4 4 4     4 32 

EMS Calls: 117 94 93 86 103 116 203 195     126 1007 

Vehicle Accidents: 31 26 28 36 42 27 31 39     32 260 

Fire Alarms: 42 38 33 55 45 58 67 73     51 411 

Other: 85 61 68 81 69 72 84 104     78 624 

Training Hours: 3118 2873 3074 2218 2063 1777 1707 1680     2313 18510 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 7 4 0 1 0 5 4 0     3 21 

Inspections: 115 116 155 149 110 88 105 130     121 968 

2022 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 216 195 226 231 236 264 246 264 280 231 255 296 245 2490 
Structure Fires: 5 6 8 5 4 1 3 3 1  1 5 1 4 43 

EMS Calls: 79 78 80 92 83 86 99 124 103 73 79 82 88 1058 
Vehicle Accidents: 22 23 22 26 32 38 27 24 33 31 30 35 29 343 

Fire Alarms: 44 35 48 53 63 56 57 53 73 59 67 78 57 686 
Other: 66 53 68 54 54 83 60 60 70 68 74 100 67 811 

Training Hours: 2757 2806 2884 2260 1704 1715 1452 1700 1647 1835 1742 1214 1976 23716 
Safety Car Seat Checks: 0 0 4 3 5 2 5 3 2 5 1 2 3 32 

Inspections: 132 123 153 136 143 187 112 142 145 135 134 80 135 1622 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES  
August 2023 
Date Prepared:  September 11, 2023 

Human Resources 
• Participated in National Night Out
• Worked with Police and Fire Chief to create pay plan proposal for retention and competitive salaries 

for recruitment efforts.
• Updated Salary Grade List for FY 23/24
• Worked with IT to get approved salaries for FY 23/24 updated in Coda for PAF processing
• Provided vacant positions list to the City Manager for his review
• Completed training with Captain Adams to discuss Neogov and Pre-Hire recruitment process
• Completed Market Study request for the City of Wilson
• Working with Public Works on 6 month evaluation and PAFs that need to be completed.
• Open Enrollment Communication Meeting with Pierce Insurance
• Wayne County Human Resources Association Training Meeting
• Revised Article VIII Section 10- Rehire -  of Personnel Policy
• Completed classification paperwork and sent for approvals for Public Works, Engineering, &

Development Services
• Met with IT Director to review IT Career Progression policy
• Completed classification paperwork and sent for approvals for Public Works, Engineering, &

Development Services
• Completed New Hire Orientation on August 16, 2023
• Coordinating Hike to the Mountains – Presented by Wellness Committee
• Completed Supervisors Training scheduled for August 1-3
• Reviewing Background Check companies with cost and data
• Preparing for upcoming Annual Evaluation Process – Details to be sent out September 1, 2023
• Preparing for Pierce Insurance 2024 Open Enrollment for Supplemental Benefits for October 16 –

27, 2023
• Preparing for BCBS State Health Plan 2024 Open Enrollment scheduled for October 9 – 27, 2023
• Preparing for American Red Cross Blood Drive in September 18, 2023
• Preparing for City of Goldsboro Job Fair – November 1, 2023
• Preparing for Seymour Johnson Airforce Base Job Fair – November 15, 2023

Safety 
• August City Hall Fire and Defibrillator Inspections.
• Investigated an incident at Compost Facility. 
• Investigated an incident at Park Maintenance Facility.
• Investigated a safety concern on Carolina Street.
• Safety walk through at Park maintenance.
• Sent out HEAT advisories during the month of August.
• Visited a D&C crew on Pine Street installing a water tap.
• Toured Public Safety complex reference structural problems.
• Meeting at Brisa’s restaurant concerning the logistics of NCFF.



2 

• August 28 – Meeting with Tourism about safety of the building they occupy.
• Pre-check of Freedom Field for next week’s festival.
• Meeting with Doug McGrath concerning the safety of the Freedom Festival.
• Field Safety for private contractors and with crews

Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  There were 274 clinic visits this month.  

Health Training Sessions: 
• 33 routine BP checks
• 16 Drug Screens
• 2 Finger stick Blood sugar checks
• Blood Pressure presentation “What Do Your Numbers Mean?” – 82 employees attended

(Presentations held at Public Works 8/16, City Hall 8/22, WTP 8/23, W. A. Foster 8/29, and
Compost 8/30)

• BloodBorne Pathogen training- 28 employees. Training at New Hire Orientation and WRF
Department

• Sharps Container and Narcan training – August 11th at Police Department
• Hearing Screen Reviews: Golf Course August 1st, Fire Dept August 8th, 10th and 17th

Meetings: 
• Wellness Committee Meeting at City Hall 8/17 9am
• Meeting with Carolina Case Management- 8/23 2pm

Other health-related information pertinent to employees include: 
• 2 reported cases of COVID positive employees
• 3 employees started FMLA (2 continuous and 1 intermittent)
• 2 Workplace Injuries, both were OSHA recordable.
• Weekly after work walks at Reedy Branch Greenway with employees started 8/24
• August Nurse Newsletter sent out to all employees: “Dangers of Sitting Disease”

DRUG SCREENS = 18 TOTAL 
New Hire CDL:  2 
New Hire non- CDL:  4 
Promotion CDL:  3 
Promotion non-CDL: 4 

Post-Accident DOT:  0 

Post-Accident Non- DOT:  0 

Instant Drug Screens:  3 
Random Safety Sensitive Drug Screen: 0 
Random Safety Sensitive Breath Alcohol Test: 0 

Random DOT Drug Screens:  0 
Random DOT Breath Alcohol Test: 0 



3 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –              
FT & PPT 

428 430 428 426 427 431 432 425 428 

Employees –            
Part Time 

92 89 91 94 110 121 125 126 106 

Total Employees 520 519 519 520 538 552 557 551 535 
Male 402 402 400 399 412 419 422 421 410 
Female 118 117 119 121 126 133 135 130 125 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

317 318 318 318 325 331 332 340 325 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

179 173 172 175 183 188 193 182 181 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

15 16 16 16 19 21 20 18 18 

Ethnicity – Asian 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 
Ethnicity – Other 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 8 8 
Vacancies 39 45 41 41 37 37 38 38 40 
Applications 137 389 354 320 185 138 363 538 303 

Applicant Notices 43 90 218 173 63 127 185 341 155 
New Hires 10 4 8 1 12 4 12 3 7 
Promotions 0 0 0 0 10 1 3 7 3 
Resignations 3 8 4 4 5 6 6 8 6 
Retirements 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

1 0 0 0 0 2 1 2 1 

Turnover Rate 1.2% 2.1% 1.2% 1.2% 1.2% 1.9% 1.4% 2.4% 1.6% 
Vehicle Accidents 3 3 2 2 4 1 3 2 3 

Workers’ Comp 0 2 3 2 5 2 8 2 3 
FFCRA Leave/ 
Covid Related 

13 3 3 0 0 0 1 2 3 

Telework 13 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 



4 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees – 
FT & PPT 

423 427 418 417 420 427 424 422 427 427 423 431 424 

Employees – 
Part Time 

116 111 113 117 137 143 143 144 137 125 106 100 124 

Total Employees 539 536 531 534 557 570 567 566 564 552 529 531 548 
Male 411 412 409 411 420 428 426 425 429 417 404 408 417 
Female 128 124 122 123 137 142 141 141 135 135 125 123 131 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

321 324 321 325 332 340 339 338 334 324 316 321 328 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

195 190 188 187 200 204 203 202 206 207 189 188 197 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

18 17 17 17 19 19 18 18 16 16 15 16 17 

Ethnicity – Asian 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Ethnicity – Other 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 7 7 5 
Vacancies 24 25 30 31 31 33 26 36 34 35 35 27 31 
Applications 308 179 386 215 251 392 121 317 146 309 123 94 237 

Applicant Notices 141 147 90 90 230 173 92 97 476 126 69 43 148 
New Hires 6 4 9 9 7 9 7 7 7 4 4 6 7 
Promotions 3 0 4 4 3 3 0 2 6 8 6 2 3 
Resignations 6 10 9 9 3 8 8 6 7 5 3 3 6 
Retirements 2 2 2 2 1 2 2 1 1 0 2 5 2 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Turnover Rate 2.4% 3.0% 2.6% 2.1% 1.0% 2.6% 2.4% 1.9% 2.1% 1.4% 1.4% 2.1% 2.1% 

Vehicle Accidents 5 1 4 1 4 2 3 4 0 0 2 3 3 

Workers’ Comp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 
FFCRA Leave/ 
Covid Related 

76 7 1 1 9 14 23 3 9 7 1 8 13 

Telework 11 11 11 11 11 12 13 13 13 13 13 13 12 

Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
August 2023 
Prepared By: Angela Price 
Date Prepared: September 11, 2023 
 
 

• Repaired Exchange Server Receive Transport Service. 
• Fixed Issue with Website Forms Sending Email. 
• Replaced Camera at TC Coley. 
• Moved Computers in GIS/Planning Due to Water. 
• HVAC Issue in City Hall Addition Repaired. (fuse issue) 
• Setup Laptops for Interviews. 
• Migrated IT email to Exchange Online. 
• Completed Joint Operations Center (JOC) for Police and Fire; Operated during recent storm. 
• Upgraded WordPress for City Websites and Updated Finance Website. 
• Completed Server Setup for GIS. 
• Replaced UPS Units for GPD. 
• Upgraded Wireless Controller. 
• Installed DGDC Conduit on Exterior. 

 
 

 
2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

825 719 842 692 730 689 710 722     741 5929 

Tickets 
Closed 

776 840 805 694 694 778 746 701     755 6036 

Open  
Tickets 

433 312 349 347 383 294 258 279     332  

 
 
 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

379 353 430 362 451 503 562 523 624 749 663 656 521 6,255 

Tickets 
Closed 

310 304 
 

466 398 392 540 464 548 590 686 689 795 515 6,182 

Open  
Tickets 

474 523 487 451 510 473 571 546 580 643 617 
 

478 529  

 
 



1 

INSPECTIONS 
Aug 2023 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 09/07/23 

The valuation of all permits issued (Residential, Commercial, & Miscellaneous) for August totaled $59,744,256.  
New Residential permits are included in this valuation. Significant projects this month: Wayne Co. DHSS at $30M 
and 18 new single-family dwellings at $3.5M. 

The valuation of all buildings (Residential & Commercial) permits totaled $48,566,805. Miscellaneous permits 
(plumbing, mechanical, electrical, fire, etc.) are not included. 

All permit fees collected for the month totaled $81,405.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $6,135 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $4,245. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $2,960. 

The Inspectors did a total of 747 inspections for the month.  During the month of August, seven (7) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 463 permits were issued for the month.    Seventy-four (74) plan reviews 
were completed for August. 

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.7 $43.8 $23.8 $9.2 $10.4 $7.6 $36.5 $59.7 $24.8
All Bldgs Valu. $ (M) $3.5 $42.1 $6.3 $5.0 $6.7 $5.3 $25.8 $48.6 $17.9
New Residential $ (M) $1.5 $652K $2.8 $2.6 $4.1 $2.9 $4.3 $3.5 $2.8
Misc $ (M) $4.2 $1.7 $17.5 $4.2 $3.7 $2.3 $10.7 $11.2 $6.9
Permit Fee $ (K) $31 $40 $65 $39 $50 $35 $61 $81 $50
Inspections 511 517 626 542 717 781 709 747 644
Permits Issued 287 413 347 414 333 348 359 463 371
Plan Reviews 49 35 49 53 83 58 75 74 60

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $3.9 $11.1 $5.4 $6.7 $5.1 $9.6 $17.8 $6.5 $9.7 $10.7 $8.6 $5.6 $8.4
All Bldgs Valu. $ (M) $2.1 $9.1 $3.9 $5.0 $2.4 $7.6 $15.4 $3.3 $6.5 $9.4 $6.4 $2.3 $6.1
New Residential $ (M) $813K $3 $472K $4.4 $341K $1.3 $0 $300K $3.1 $1.1 $1.1 $1.1 $1.4
Misc $ (M) $1.8 $2 $1.4 $1.7 $2.7 $2.0 $2.4 $3.2 $3.1 $1.3 $2.3 $3.3 $2.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $39 $43 $43 $35 $43 $41 $36 $48 $43 $42 $33 $29 $40
Inspections 460 551 654 614 584 730 531 661 621 587 836 512 612
Permits Issued 258 281 288 281 336 344 253 306 488 306 288 208 303
Plan Reviews 38 66 79 39 45 48 58 56 74 57 33 23 51



1 

PARAMOUNT 
August 2023 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 9/12/2023 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 

• August activity included 8 rental/use days, including 4 public performances.
o Notable Activity:

 Special Olympics: Miss Lovelies Pageant
 Edwards Twins: Vegas Impersonators
 Congressman Wiley Nickels Town Hall

• August cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 10 days, 4 public performances
• Repairs and Maintenance:

 Façade Elements removed, treated, and to be reattached by TA Loving in Sept.
 HVAC Controls upgrade budgeted and being coordinated with Piedmont.
 Wheelchair lift – To be revisited in 2024.
 Sound System repair and upgrade – Foundation to fund.
 Roof repairs have held; interior ceiling stains and water damage to be repaired.

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 

 

Expenses: $25,165:   Labor: $27,729 / Operations: $10,469 /Artist and Renter box office Payout: $25,820 
Revenues: $15,366:   Tickets: -$10,869 / Building Rentals: -$2510 / Concession: $113  

Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 FY 24 Total Average

Exp $25,165 $64,018 $89,183 $44,592

Rev $15,366 $13,492 $28,858 $14,429

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 FY 23 Total Average

Exp $47,039 $34,677 $52,943 $64,232 $38,325 $149,481 $63,274 $46,490 $66,591 $75,399 $100,423 $110,336 $849,210 $70,768

Rev -$867 $9,685 $27,448 $27,531 $54,098 $99,030 $49,176 $12,457 $67,200 $47,572 $77,666 $71,398 $542,394 $45,200



1 

Parks & Recreation/Golf Course/Goldsboro Event Center 
August 2023 
Prepared By: Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 9/11/23 

• Our Bryan Multi-Sports Complex (MSCX) was used as a site for several high school soccer games in
August – 250 participants

• Both Mina Weil Pool and Peacock Pool continued their operations in August – 1,200+ participants

• Sensory Swim was offered on Tuesdays in August – 12 participants

• Goldsboro Parks and Recreation (GPR) held a cookout for the visually impaired - 21 participants

• Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) hosted eighteen (18) events during August – 2,245 guests and four (4)
City of Goldsboro events – 291 guests

• Staff at the GEC had to turn away 16 patrons due to dates already being booked

• Golden Agers held their monthly luncheon on August 9th – 23 participants

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted several tournaments this month including Sunrise Kiwanis – 76 golfers
and Coopers – 56 golfers

• Youth Karate Program at WA Foster Center in August – 63 participants

• Attendance in our Youth and Adult Game Rooms at WA Foster Center – 345 visitors

• Full-Day Camp for 7-12 year olds and Half-Day Camp for 5-6 year olds were both held at WA Foster
Center and concluded this month – 100+ participants

• Senior Card Group Play at TC Coley Community Center – 143 participants

• Gym Open Play at WA Foster Center for Adults and Youth during August – 530 participants

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean the park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff, and Seasonal staff



2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG 
S
E
P 

O
C
T 

N
O
V 

DEC AVG 

Goldsboro Event Center  
Rental Revenue $21,154 $17,487 $22,241 $18,705 $11,441 $11,359  $12,152 $30,435 $18,122 
Facility Usage 1250 1975 1802 3225 2065   2165  2016 2536  2129 
Expenditures $6,742 $8,122 $7,537 $6,475 $13,627 $17,384  $8,527  $9,749 $9,770 

W. A. Foster Recreation Center 

Program Revenue $2,860 $2,977 $2,195 $1,170 $1,165 $14,570   $825 $230 $3,249 
Rental Revenue $948 $1,827 $2,918 $1,088  $625 $308   $2,195 $603  $1,314 
Facility Usage 2633 1632 2022 2651  2983 1546   2077 1942 2186 
Expenditures $6,989 $12,076 $12,603 $11,993  $8,585 $26,741  $19,668 $17,541 $14,525 

T. C. Coley Community Center 
Program Revenue $497 $1,130 $539 $280  $250 $167  $211 $237 $414 
Rental Revenue $1,890 $720 $450 $450  $450 $1,015 $1,015 $80 $759 
Facility Usage 197 73 170 193  210 154   177 197  171 
Expenditures $1,874 $1,379 $2,203 $3,934  $6,644 $14,466  $6,706 $9,164  $5,796 

Specialized Recreation 
Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $36  $18 $0 $7 
Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $0  $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 190 182 98 98  45  74  166 184 130 
Expenditures $7,618 $8,447 $6,350 $6,729  $7,462 $11,736  $8,627  $5,612  $7,823 

Senior Programs & Pools 
Program Revenue $0 $185 $0 $140  $11 $4,082 $8,749  $3,408 $2,071 
Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $400  $875  $700 $247 
Facility Usage 166 251 295 210  212 2383 2720  2025  1033 
Expenditures $3,749 $5,489 $4,688 $3,818  $5,927 $20,543 $21,611  $15,760  $10,198 

Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX  
Program Revenue $65 $32,120 $23,050 $1,142 $5,780  $2,565  $45 $25,540  $11,288 
Rental Revenue $6,136 $0 $85 $0  $900 $0  $0  $1,950  $1,134 
Facility Usage 17550 19750 21900 22350  36285 21222  14380   15290 21091 
Expenditures $4,917 $9,557 $10,461 $10,886 $10,456 $33,132 $7,678  $14,900 $12,748 

Golf Course 

Revenues $37,930 $32,709 $55,850 $48,454 $56,560  $73,812  $61,821  $63,590 $53,841 

Expenditures $63,976 $35,563 $52,218 $36,482 $53,315 $60,208 $31,528 $83,528  $52,102 
Rounds of Golf 1200 1592 2788 1941  2309  2120 2110  2076  2017 
Net -$26,046 -$2,854 $3,632 $11,972 $3,245  $13,603 $30,293  -$19,938  $1,738 

Special Events 
Revenues / Sponsorships $0 $2,000 $0 $0  $1,600 $1,730 $1,659  $0 $874 
Participation 0 200 70 152  160 101   101  $0 98 
Expenditures $18 $911 $511 $94  $3,170 $2,194 $1,551   $0 $1,056 

TOTAL REVENUE $71,480 $91,155 $107,328 $71,429 $78,782  $110,044  $89,565 $126,773 $93,320 
TOTAL EXPENSES $95,883 $81,544 $96,571 $80,411 $109,186 $186,404  $105,896 $156,254 $114,019 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $746,556 

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $912,149 



2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Herman Park Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $1,910 $520 $720 $978 $2,050 $27,880 $3,200 $1,190 $720 $1,710 $1,505 $990 $3,614 

Rental Revenue  $735 $1,475 $1,530 $2,350 $520 $1,366 $1,013 $1,895 $0 $0 $450 $450 $982 
Facility Usage 250 189 243 188 159 1475 470 224 286 468 390 292 386 
Expenditures $7,135 $5,287 $6,294 $6,126 $5,142 $8,344 $17,670 $8,333 $4,855 $5,048 $4,652 $4,485 $6,948 

WA Foster Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $895 $295 $505 $430 $2,453 $3,750 $1,475 $1,185 $1,108 $1,258 $563 $1,952 $1,322 

Rental Revenue $900 $2,820 $1,800 $3,058 $2,163 $1,653 $2,950 $1,025 998 $1,238 $513 $1,377 $1,625 
Facility Usage 1595 1565 1565 2051 1814 2495 2268 2814 1825 1719 1579 2325 1779 
Expenditures $18,218 $18,684 $16,911 $16,186 $12,952 $13,819 $29,738 $15,471 $8,798 $11,022 $9,556 $10,764 $15,177 

T.C. Coley Community Center 
Rental Revenue $518 $450 $518 $518 $880 $948 $525 $698 $855 $585 $585 $585 $639 
Expenses $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $80 $0 $100 $0 $0 $42 $0 $357 $202 

Specialized Recreation 
Program 
Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $39 $0 $3 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 95 119 152 58 360 220 203 211 222 230 160 123 179 
Expenditures $5,865 $5,592 $5,921 $5,620 $4,039 $4,761 $6,253 $2,946 $2,064 $10,867 $11,985 $6,856 $6,064 

Senior Programs & Pools 
Program 
Revenue $105 $105 $105 $105 $1,807 $8,484 $4,936 $2,594 $190 $190 $462 $190 $1,606 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 232 376 375 1013 1243 3492 3287 1870 268 256 194 271 1073 
Expenditures $1,027 $2,257 $1,874 $1,722 $2,437 $11,092 $37,817 $30,044 $13,284 $5,555 $3,114 $5,234 $9,621 

Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX 
Program 
Revenue $5,555 $16,145 $10,338 $3,319 $19,384 $2,790 $3,155 $27,200 $27,200 $2,990 $7,460 $1,362 $10,575 

Field / Shelter 
Rental $ $0 $0 $0 $150 $75 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $44 

Facility Usage 10673 14935 23858 29346 44914 36785 11450 13125 13125 23100 23000 13425 21478 

Expenditures $22,418 $15,209 $16,761 $19,436 $34,794 $10,597 $16,635 $11,609 $9,099 $8,745 $13,479 $5,587 $15,364 

Golf Course 
Revenues $15,988 $33,437 $50,876 $63,756 $68,934 $61,883 $51,301 $56,058 $50,749 $58,366 $34,376 $26,979 $47,725 
Expenditures $31,667 $37,653 $43,486 $35,649 $38,279 $49,110 $57,300 $80,153 $43,513 $41,316 $34,791 $43,762 $44,723 
Rounds of Golf 433 1296 1724 2502 1936 1976 1816 1401 1291 1699 1120 541 1478 
Net -$15,680 -$4,216 $7,390 $28,107 $30,655 $12,773 -$5,999 -$24,100 $7,236 $17,051 -$415 -$16,782 $3,002 

Special Events 
Revenues / 
Sponsorships $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,975 $0 $0 $300 $370 $0 $0 $220 

Participation 0 0 0 1600 0 110 0 0 75 766 0 5000 629 
Expenditures $2,013 $110 $110 $285 $0 $1,599 $0 $0 $472 $472 $0 $1,861 $577 

TOTAL 
REVENUE $26,606 $55,247 $66,392 $74,664 $98,266 $110,729 $68,555 $91,845 $81,122 $66,707 $45,952 $34,185 $820,269 

TOTAL 
EXPENSES $90,191 $84,792 $91,357 $85,024 $97,723 $99,322 $165,513 $148,556 $82,085 $83,067 $77,577 $78,905 $1,184,112 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $820,269 

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $1,184,112  

**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in expenditures is loan/bond payments 
and electricity for the areas except for our Golf Course.  All these costs are included in our Golf Course Expenditures. 



1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
August 2023 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West         
Date Prepared:  September 5, 2023  

Total Part I Crimes (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle 
Theft, and Arson) for August 2023 was 241, compared to 172 for August 2022. 

Property with an estimated value of $606,683 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $279,579 was recovered and property damaged was $77,169. 

Officers arrested 88 people and issued 170 citations during the month. There were 13 drug-related 
charges.  

There was 0 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s). 

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total 

OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 1 2 2 0 0 0 5 
Rape 0    2  1  2 0 0  0 0  5 
Robbery 2 1  4  1 5 4  2 6 25 
Aggravated Assault 15 17 26 16 20 17 23 23 157 
Breaking & Entering 22 16  12  18 29  24  30  28 179 
Larceny 112 88   110  114 160  148  135  162 1029 
Motor Vehicle Theft 10  10 16  12 9  9 23 22 111 
Arson 0 0 0  0  1  0  0 0 1 
TOTALS 161 134 170  165  226  202  213  241 1512 

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total 
OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 1 2 0 0 2 0 0 1  0  0  1 7 
Rape 1 2 1 3 1 1 1 1 2 0 3 3 19 
Robbery 1 2 6 3 5 3 8 2 2 2 5 2 41 
Aggravated Assault     11 12 20 31 27 20 20 19 25 16 13 13 227 
Breaking & Entering 25 19 18 26 19 28 24 16 24 17 10 10 236 
Larceny 92 86     95 118 94 117 106 127 103 162 102 112 1314 
Motor Vehicle Theft 6 6 7 5 15 21 9 7 9 14 15 6 120 
Arson 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 
TOTALS 136 129 149 187 161 192 168 172 166 211 148 147 1966 

Revenue collected for August 2023 included: 

Police Reports $   638.00 
Fingerprints $      70.00 
Special Events $ 200.00 

         Total $   908.00 



1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
August 2023 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: September 11, 2023 

Water Treatment Plant 
• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly.

o Currently implementing Capital Projects for the replacements of the ATSs at the WTP and at the
NRPS.

o 1 uncertified operator but is scheduled for school in September. The Water Treatment Plant is
fully staffed.

o No issues during Tropical Storm Idalia.
Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing well. The average daily flow

for August is 7.87-MGD. The yearly average flow for the WRF is 8-MGD. This puts the WRF at 60% 
capacity. 
o All the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. No major issues to report.
o Working on implementation several Capital Improvements projects: Bar screen at New Hope

L/S, replacement of the underdrain system for Sand filter #2 (Both projects are scheduled
to start the week of September 11th), Generator at Westbrook L/S, and Upgrade of the Public
Utilities Telemetry System Replace Transfer Switches at the Neuse River Pump Station and WTP,
Replace Bulk Storage Tank at the WRF, Construct Bay 8 enclosure at the Compost Facility and
Replace flow meters at the WTP.

o 4 uncertified operators at the WRF. All scheduled to test for certification in September. One
operator position is open currently.

o Ash St. Lift Station upgrade with MOPCO is in service. River Bend Lift Station construction has
started. The River Bend lift station will replace Big and Little Cherry lift stations.

o No issues during Tropical Storm Idalia.
Compost Facility 
• Eight hundred and forty-five cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in August 2023.

Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average daily flows for each 
month. 

2023 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.82 5.80 6.32 5.35 5.58 6.76 6.29 6.30 6.03 

Sewer** 7.23 9.94 7.81 9.94 8.64 7.87 9.69 8.82 8.74 
Compost 1654413 358 835 1509 888 866 822 845 786 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD
2022 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.608 5.487 5.60 5.53 5.91 6.15 6.304 6.330 6.254 5.97 5.80 6.086 5.92 
Sewer** 9.15 9.32 8.63 7.86 7.57 6.56 7.85 7.34 7.05 6.99 6.48 6.67 7.62 

Compost 165 972 663 1,287 995 278 419 204 491 619 830 262 599 
*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
10.7 17.6 11.3 9.8 19.0 20.0 24.5 20.7 16.7
1.6 5.2 3 3.3 4.6 3.7 2.5 3.4 3.4
30 22 23 24 31 16 21 23 23.8
12 12 18 16 24 10 17 24 16.6
12 3 5 3 2 3 5 1 4.3
3 5 8 5 4 8 6 4 5.4

49 61 63 33 44 39 39 28 44.5
0 0 0 61 91 82 97 104 54.4
0 15 69 75 276 102 67 103 88.4

249 207 265 245 279 213 228 232 239.8
79$    74$    76$    75$    86$    77$    87$    92$    80.7

1.08 0.91 1.10 0.98 1.08 1.03 1.11 1.14 1.053
0 38 0 37 71 56 39 13 31.8
0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 1.0 0.640

5 4 5 5 4 0 1 1 3.1

9 8 23 17 32 20 15 25 18.6
70 65 105 145 113 110 88 40 92.0
49.7 102 170.8 130.2 190 196.5 229.2 275.9 168.0
4.05 2.07 2.16 2.43 0.00 0.40 0.38 1.95 1.7
0.00 2.85 0.00 0.00 50.48 7.91 3.68 11.80 9.6
1 3 1 7 4 0 3 1 2.5

9.1 4.7 9.0 14.8 12.9 15.3 37.1 31.0 4.5 5 11.9 6.4 13.5
2.3 1.9 2.2 1.9 3.5 7.1 3.0 4.1 4.1 3.5 4 2.4 3.3
33 37 25 26 19 27 25 24 14 25 26 21 25.2
20 19 20 14 25 17 28 11 12 6 18 6 16.3
2 2 2 1 8 3 2 32 3 5 10 6 6.3
12 27 16 6 12 15 4 8 5 5 8 6 10.3

41 53 42 35 38 48 46 41 29 29 38 34 39.5
32 15 55.5 74.2 92.8 65.6 90.6 53.3 96.8 38.5 0 0 51.2
0 10 39.2 84 195.9 226.7 147.5 165.7 86.8 11 0 0 80.6

295 200 257 212 224 244 227 253 219 232 204 165 227.7
49$    48$    57$    52$    117$     141$     112$     111$     98$    93$    89$    70$    86.4

1.07 0.91 1.11 0.98 1.04 1.09 0.96 1.16 0.97 0.81 0.91 1.05 1.0
20 38 0 0 0 0 0 41 68 87 51 55 30.0
0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.9 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.8 0.6

4 5 4 2 2 5 4 3 2 3 8 5 3.9

0 36 23 16 13 9 17 16 9 15 14 0 14.0
65 51 116 14 56 15 33 57 23 16 16 39 41.8
78.2 156.1 177.2 127.8 166.28 191 133.9 209.2 152.3 138.4 69.2 63.4 138.6
0.14 0.00 3.00 0.00 0.20 0.31 0.13 0.02 0.44 0 0.2 0.2 0.4
0.00 0.40 0.00 0.00 19.28 44.50 9..43 31.60 17.38 20.04 3.08 0.00 12.4
6 2 2 2 3 3 1 7 3 1 4 1 2.9

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

2023

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Total Work Orders
 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Public Works Department
August 2023
Prepared by:  Jamie Stanley
Date Prepared: 11 September 2023

2022

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage

Buildings & Grounds: Buildings & Grounds: Electrical circuits for JOC and power connections at HUB for vendors.  Repaired leak 
at City Hall, lighting issues at WRF and setup for Center Street Jams.  Supported tree removal and catch basin maintenance.

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 14 after hour calls--total of 25.5 hours. Completed 107 work orders.

Streets & Stormwater: Repaired 25 Utility cuts totaling 184.6 SY and 40 potholes, 36 trees in roadway, Carolina St. SW 263.7 CY 
poured, 11,805 LF of small ditches cleaned, Swept 229.2 curb miles, Jet Rod 1,950 LF storm pipe, cleaned 14 Manholes and 14 
Catch Basins, Crews cleaned off over 900 Catch Basins ahead of inclement weather, 39 Hours of Call Duty.



1 

Travel and Tourism 
August 2023 
Prepared by: Amanda Justice, Candace Clarkson and Amber Herring 
Date Prepared: 9/7/2023 

• Total hotel revenue generated in July was $2,420,867 which is up 0.6% YOY. August

revenue not yet released.

• The top page for July was "50 things to do in Wayne County," with 313 pageviews, 2:34

average time on page, 294 sessions, and 159 engaged sessions. The keyword "best bbq in

North Carolina" increased 13 positions from 70 to 57. August numbers not yet available.

• Candidate’s Academy presentation

• Monthly GTC/TDA Meeting

• Attended Wayne Chamber of Commerce tenant meeting – 8/28

• Candace and Amanda – Brand research zoom call

• Amanda attended EQ training sponsored by the City – 8/1

City Occupancy Tax Collections 

  August figures have not been released 

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2023-24 $90,771 $90,771 

2022-23 $77,698 $88,942 $92,884 $105,264 $98,050 $90,136 $70,276 $64,615 $81,123 $88,849 $86,324 $100,063 $1,044,224 $87,018 



M



ORDINANCE NO. 2023 - ____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 53: WATER AND SEWER SYSTEMS  

OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO’S CODE OF ORDINANCES 
 

WHEREAS, it is a standard practice for cities to request voluntary annexation upon satisfactory provision of 
water and sewer services for residential, commercial, and industrial property; and  

WHEREAS, changing the industrial property voluntary annexation period from seven years from the date 
occupancy begins to the date occupancy begins would be consistent with local government practices and treat 
residential, commercial, and industrial properties the same; and 

WHEREAS, after a review of Chapter 53, city staff recommend updating section 53.17 (B) as noted below.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, that section 53.17 (B) of 
the Code of Ordinances, City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, is hereby amended as follows:  

Chapter 53 

§ 53.17 CONDITIONS FOR MAKING WATER AND SEWER CONNECTIONS. 
    
   (B)   For industrial property: 

      (1)   An industry will be defined as listed under Division D, Manufacturing, of the Standard Industrial 
Classification Manual, published by the Office of the Management and Budget of the United States Government. 

      (2)   The city will agree to provide access to water and sewer lines to any industry requesting such extension, 
subject to available capacity, provided that the industry locates within three miles of the city limits. 

      (3)   An industry requesting access to water and sewer lines will be granted such access upon execution of a 
formal agreement with the city to file a petition for voluntary annexation on or before the expiration of seven 
years from the date occupancy begins. 

      (4)   It shall be the responsibility of the developer to pay for the extension of water and sewer lines from 
the point of nearest access to its property, but the city shall agree to reimburse the developer for such costs in 
accordance with this chapter and formula provided for the payment of frontage fees for residential and 
commercial development. If the developer is in fact the county, the developer will be responsible for the 
extension of water and sewer lines, including any oversized lines to be required for future development. In 
addition, the operation and maintenance of pump lift stations constructed relative to these lines outside of the 
city limits would be borne by the county until properly for which pump lift station was installed is annexed. If 
the developer is in fact a private developer, then it shall be the responsibility of the city to bear the costs of 
any oversized lines required by it. However, the county will also be entitled to the recoupment of its expenses, 
including oversized lines, through frontage fees in accordance with the policy and formula described for 
residential and commercial development. Recapture of the expenses of oversized lines shall be based upon the 
front foot cost of the line, excluding oversizing, plus the line's future inflated cost not to exceed the original 
front foot cost of the oversized line. 

      (5)   Any industry located outside the city limits obtaining access to water and/or sewer facilities shall 
continue to pay revenues based upon the rates then in effect and shall continue to pay such prevailing rates 
until its annexation into the city pursuant to the petition for voluntary annexation. 

 
 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the 18th day of September, 2023. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
       David Ham, Mayor  
Attested by:   
 
 
__________________________ 
Laura Getz, City Clerk 



Item N



Item O


	Agenda 09-18-23
	ws item a - FORVIS
	Board Presentation- Preliminary Audit Results
	Audit Matters
	General Fund – Fund Balance Summary	
	General Fund – Fund Balance Summary	
	Utility Fund
	Utility Fund
	Compliance Reporting
	Questions?

	ws item d - B&C 9-18-23
	Applicants for BC 2023
	Board and Commission Vacancies 8-31-23
	U0 VacanciesU            URecommendation U
	UHistoric District Commission
	Tyrone Starkie   Resigned
	Antwan Williams   Request Council Removal due to non-attendance
	UGoldsboro Planning Commission

	U0 Vacancies U           URecommendation U
	UGoldsboro Tourism Council



	Item A - Minutes 09-05-23
	Item B - Lynn Bethea RES
	Item C - Kappa Epsilon Psi Military Sorority Proclamation 2023
	Item D - SU-13-23
	Item E- SU-14-23
	Item F - SU-15-23
	Item G - Agenda 2023-09-18 6111 System Dev Fees CR Ordin
	Agenda Memo 6111 System Development Fees CR 09-18-23.docx
	ORDINANCE 6111 FY23 System Development Fees Capital Reserve 09-18-23

	Item H - Agenda 2023-09-18 Operating Amendment (Sys Dev Fee)_1
	Agenda Memo Op Funds 2023-09-18_1
	ORDINANCE Op Amend 2023-09-18_0

	Item I - Agenda 2023-09-18 Upset Bid 200 N Carolina (Uzzell)
	Agenda Memo 2023-09-18 Upset Bid Resol 200 N Carolina (Uzzell)_0
	Resol Authorizing Upset Bid Process 2023-09-18 200 N Carolina (Uzzell)_0
	2023-09-07_Norris L. Uzzell_Offer to Purchase_$1,800.00 w Full price Check_Redacted
	GIS Map 200 N Carolina 08-28-23
	Appraisal Card_0047355_2599-77-3020

	Item J - AIA and MRF Grant Applications
	Item J1 - Grant Funding Memo
	Item J2 - MRF RES
	Item J3 - AIA RES
	Item J4 - RES Certification

	Item K - Police & Fire Pay
	Item L - Monthly Reports - August
	Monthly Departmental Reports - Cover Page
	Community Relations and Development Monthly Report - August 2023
	Community Relations and Development Monthly Report Addendum - August 2023
	ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT - AUGUST 2023
	Finance1 - 2023-08
	Finance2 - Budget Transfers Summary FY24 2023-02 AUG & JUL
	Finance3 - Cash & Investment FY2024-02-Aug
	Finance4 - Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2023-08 Aug_1
	Fire - Report
	HR - MonthlyRpt_August
	Inspections MoRepAug2023
	Parks & Rec - August Monthly Report 2023 FLB
	Police Monthly Report August 2023
	Public Utilities Department Monthly Report - Copy
	Public Works Council Report- 2023 08
	Travel - August 2023 Directors Report

	Item M - Ch 53.17 Update
	Item N1 - Ch 53.17 Update
	Item N2 - Ch 53.17 ORD

	Item N - Hispanic Month Proclamation 2023
	Item O - Constitution Week Proclamation 2023



